[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

CITY or Pensions Committee
WOLVERHAMPTON
COUNCIL 14 December 2022
Time 10.00 am Public Meeting? YES Type of meeting Pensions

Venue Council Chamber - Civic Centre, St Peter's Square, Wolverhampton WV1 1SH

Membership

Chair ClIr Milkinderpal Jaspal (Lab)
Vice-chair Clir Olivia Birch (Lab)

Labour Conservative

Clir Craig Collingswood Clir Paul Appleby
Clir Carol Hyatt Clir Andrew Randle
Clir Phil Page Clir Paul Singh

Clir Tersaim Singh
Clir Paul Sweet

District Members Trade union observers
Clir Peter Allen (Sandwell Metropolitan Borough Council) Malcolm Cantello

Clir Ray Goodwin (Birmingham City Council) Martin Clift

Clir Michael Gough (Solihull Metropolitan Borough Council) lan Smith

Clir Angus Lees (Dudley Metropolitan Borough Council) Janice Wadrup

Clir Bally Singh (Coventry City Council)
Clir Angela Underhill (Walsall Metropolitan Borough Council)

The quorum for a Committee meeting is 5 voting members, to include at least 1 elected member
from the City of Wolverhampton Council and one Metropolitan District Representative.

Information for the Public

If you have any queries about this meeting, please contact the Democratic Services team:

Contact Fabrica Hastings
Tel/Email Tel:01902 552699 or Fabrica.Hastings2@wolverhampton.gov.uk
Address Democratic Services, Civic Centre, 1st floor, St Peter’'s Square,

Wolverhampton WV1 1RL

Copies of other agendas and reports are available from:

Website http://wolverhamptonintranet.moderngov.co.uk
Email democratic.services@wolverhampton.gov.uk
Tel 01902 550320

Please take note of the protocol for filming and recording of, and use of social media in, meetings, copies
of which are displayed in the meeting room.

If you are reading these papers on an electronic device you have saved the Council £11.33 and
helped reduce the Council’s carbon footprint.


http://wolverhampton.cmis.uk.com/decisionmaking
mailto:democratic.services@wolverhampton.gov.uk

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Some items are discussed in private because of their confidential or commercial nature. These reports
are not available to the public.




[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda

Part 1 — items open to the press and public

Item No.

1
2

10

11

12

Title
Apologies for absence (if any)
Declarations of interests (if any)

Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 5 - 12)
[For approval]

Matters arising
[To consider any matters arising from the minutes of the previous meetings]

Responsible Investment Activities (Pages 13 - 38)
[To receive an update on the work undertaken in relation to responsible investment
activities.] [Appendix A to follow.]

Pensions Administration Report from 1 July to 30 September 2022 (Pages 39
- 58)
[To receive an update on the routine operational work undertaken.]

Customer Engagement Update (Pages 59 - 68)
[To receive an update on the Fund’s customer engagement activity.]

Compliance and Assurance (Pages 69 - 78)
[To receive an update on the work of the Fund to deliver a well governed scheme.]

Delivering Our Corporate Plan (Pages 79 - 82)
[To receive an update on the work of the Fund in achieving its deliverables and
targets set out in the Corporate Plan.]

Budget Monitoring 2022/23 and Quarterly Accounts to 30 September 2022
(Pages 83 - 86)
[To receive an update on the forecast out-turn against operating budget.]

Quarterly Investment Report to 30 September 2022 (Pages 87 - 108)
[To consider a range of investment issues.]

Exclusion of press and public
[To pass the following resolution:

That, in accordance with section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the
press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business
as they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information falling within paragraph 3
of Schedule 12A to the Act.]



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

PART 2 - EXEMPT ITEMS, CLOSED TO PRESS AND PUBLIC

13

14

15

Investment Strategy and Activity Update (Pages
109 - 114)

[To receive an update on investment strategy and
activity.]

2022 Actuarial Valuation Update (Pages 115 - 126)

[To receive an update on the delivery of the 2022
Actuarial Valuation.]

Pension Administration System Transition (Pages
127 - 136)

[To receive an update on the progress of the project
managing the transition of the pension administration
system to the new provider.]

Information relating to the
financial or business affairs of
any particular person (including
the authority holding that
information) Para (3)

Information relating to the
financial or business affairs of
any particular person (including
the authority holding that
information) Para (3)

Information relating to the
financial or business affairs of
any particular person (including
the authority holding that
information) Para (3)



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

CITY oF

WOLVERHAMPTON

COUNCIL

Pensions Committee
Minutes - 21 September 263202 Item No: 3

Attendance

Members of the Pensions Committee

Clir Milkinderpal Jaspal (Chair)
Clir Olivia Birch (Vice-Chair)

Clir Paul Appleby

Clir Craig Collingswood

Clir Carol Hyatt
Clir Phil Page

Clir Paul Singh
Clir Tersaim Singh
Clir Paul Sweet

Trade Union Representatives

Martin Clift (Unite)
lan Smith (Unite)

Clir Michael Gough (Solihull Metropolitan Borough Council)
Clir Angus Lees (Dudley Metropolitan Borough Council)
Clir Bally Singh (Coventry City Council)

Employees

Rachel Brothwood
Simon Taylor
Shiventa Sivanesan

Femi Olatunde
Christopher Manning
Amy Regler

Hayley Reid

Laura Parker-Marsden
Holly Slater
Jaswinder Kaur
Fabrica Hastings
David M Rowley
Grant B Patterson

Director of Pensions - West Midlands Pension Fund
Assistant Director — Pensions

Assistant Director — Investment Management and
Stewardship

Finance Project Consultant

Head of Finance

Head of Operations

Regulatory Governance Manager

Governance Support Officer

Governance Officer

Democratic Services Manager

Democratic Services Officer

Grant Thornton — V

Grant Thornton - V

Part 1 — items open to the press and public

Item No. Title

1 Apologies for absence (if any)
Apologies were received from Councillor Peter Allen, Councillor Ray Goodwin and
Malcom Cantello — Trade Union Representative.

2 Declarations of interests (if any)
There were no declarations of interest.

Page 5




[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Minutes of the previous meeting
1. ClIr Hyatt requested that the minutes were amended to reflect the question
raised on page 6 was regarding the attendance of Trade Union
Representatives.

2. Subject to the above amendment, the minutes of the previous meeting held on
29 June 2022 be approved as a correct record.

Matters arising
There were no matters arising.

Customer Engagement

Simon Taylor, Assistant Director - Pensions, presented the report on Fund’s
customer engagement activity from 1st April 2022 to 30th June 2022 and to cover
future planned customer engagement activity in the context of the Fund’s Customer
Engagement Strategy.

The Assistant Director - Pensions drew the Committee’s attention to the
Communications Policy and Customer Engagement Strategy which had been
reviewed and required approval, summarising the changes in both documents and
highlighting the new opportunities for engagement afforded to the Fund by the move
to its new premises.

It was noted that the Fund had received reaccreditation of its Customer Services
Excellence award, receiving a compliance plus rating and extra recognition for
certain areas of delivery.

The Committee were further advised that as a mark of respect to the Queen, all Fund
events scheduled from the 12 September - 21 September 2022 had been postponed.
The Pensions Awareness Week covered in section 6.4 of the report had now been
planned for later in the year.

Resolved:
1. That the Customer Engagement Strategy and Communications Policy as set
out in Appendices B and C be approved.
2. That the reaccreditation of the Fund for Customer Service Excellence for 2022
be noted.

Pensions Administration Report from 1 April to 30 June 2022

Amy Regler, Head of Operations, presented the report on the routine operational
work undertaken by the Pensions Administration Service areas during the period 1
April — 30 June 2022.

The Head of Operations advised the Committee of an increase in outstanding case
work, due to the profile of the Fund’s membership with a high volume of deferred
members attaining their retirement age during the period.

The Head of Operations highlighted two instances where KPI’s (the provision of
retirement quotes for active and deferred members), had not been achieved during
the period. It was noted that the Fund routinely sees an increase in the provision of
retirement quotes at this time of year and measures had been put in place to mitigate
the impact with an improvement in Fund processing performance compared to the
same period during the prewousp%agr.e 6



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Resolved:

1. That the 13 applications for admission from employers into the Fund as
detailed in section 9 and Appendix E of this report be approved.

2. That the write-offs detailed in section 11 of this report be approved.

3. That the performance and workloads of the key pension administration
functions be noted.

4. That the Development of the Fund’s membership and participating employers
be noted.

Compliance and Assurance
Hayley Reid, Regulatory Governance Manager, presented the report on the work of
the Fund to deliver a well governed scheme.

The Regulatory Governance Manager outlined the Conflicts Management policy and
the reviewed and updated Debit Recovery policy which had both been included
within the report for approval.

The Regulatory Governance Manager noted that the risks included within the Fund’s
strategic risk register had remained static throughout the quarter. It was noted that
both recruitment and resourcing and investment volatility remained high risks and
that the Fund continued to await the publication of statutory guidance and regulations
over the coming months, noting delays and unforeseen changes in these could
further impact on the risk environment.

The Committee were advised of the statutory delivery of the Fund’s Annual Benefit
Statement, statements had been delivered to 99.6% of eligible deferred members
and 90.7.% of eligible active members. All statements had been published on
member portals in advance of the 31 August 2022 deadline.

The Regulatory Governance Manager highlighted the LGPS England and Wales:
Governance and reporting of climate risks consultation for the Committee which had
been included as a background paper to the report.

In a response to a question from Clir Collingswood with regards to data breaches,
the Regulatory Governance Manager advised the Committee that there were no
patterns identified in relation to the data breaches detailed in the report and outlined
the process for the monitoring and review of data breaches.

Resolved:

1. That the Fund’s Conflicts Management policy be approved.

2. That the Fund’s Debt Recovery policy be approved.

3. That the latest Strategic Risk Register and areas being closely monitored in
the current environment be noted.

4. That the compliance monitoring activity undertaken during the quarter be
noted.

5. That the Fund’s Key Performance Indicators (KPI) and action taken to support
service delivery be noted.

6. That the statutory delivery of the Annual Benefit Statements be noted.

Page 7



10

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Annual Report and Accounts 2021/22

Femi Olatunde, Finance Project Consultant, presented the report on the finalisation
of the Statement of Accounts and the Annual Report for the year ending 31 March
2022 and the latter’s publication on the Fund’s website in advance of the statutory
deadline of 1 December 2022.

David Rowley, Grant Thornton, presented the Committee with an update on the
Annual Report and Accounts 2021-22. He advised the Committee that Grant
Thornton had no concerns to report regarding the finalisation of the external audit
which was substantially complete. It was noted that at the time of reporting there had
not been any control weaknesses identified which required reporting to the
Committee.

It was noted that the Committee had approved a delegation to the Chair and Vice-
Chair to approve the final statement of accounts upon completion of the external
audit.

Resolved:

1. That the delegation of the authority to the Chair and Vice-Chair to approve;
the final Statement of Accounts, once the audit is completed in September,
and the final publication of the Fund’s 2021-2022 Annual Report, as agreed by
the Committee in June 2022, be noted.

2. That the update on the Fund’s External Audit from Grant Thornton be noted.

Budget Monitoring 2022/23 and Quarterly Accounts 30 June 2022

Femi Olatunde, Finance Project Consultant, presented the report on the yearend
forecast at the end of quarter ended 30 June 2022 and provided an update on the
value of the net assets of the WMPF at the end of quarter ended 30 June 2022.

The Finance Project Consultant outlined the net position of the Fund and provided an
update on the operating budget of the Fund, it was noted that at the end of June
2022, the net assets of the Fund were £19.4bn.

Resolved:
1. That the value of the net assets of the West Midlands Pension Fund (WMPF)
at the end of quarter ended 30 June 2022 was £19.4bn be noted.
2. That, as at the end of June 2022, WMPF forecasts an overspend of £4.5m at
yearend attributable to £5.3m forecast overspend on investment management
expenses offset by £0.8m forecast underspend on employee costs, be noted.

Quarterly Investment Report to 30 June 2022

Shiventa Sivanesan, Assistant Director — Investment Management and Stewardship,
presented the report on the developments in investment markets, asset allocation
and investment performance over the latest quarter in relation to the WMPF (Main
Fund and Admitted Body Separate Funds).

The Assistant Director - Investment Management and Stewardship advised the
Committee that the second quarter of 2022 was a challenging market environment
with the majority of asset classes producing negative returns. Within this backdrop,
the Fund returned -4.9% over the quarter to the end of June 22, outperforming its
benchmark by 0.3%. Over the 12-months to the end of June 22, the Fund returned -
1.4%, outperforming its benchmark by 0.5%.

Page 8



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

In response to a question from Clir Collingswood the Assistant Director — Investment
Management and Stewardship confirmed that performance was largely driven by
broader market performance, however, it was noted that the Fund had benefited from
the diverse range of assets it holds and allocations to private markets.

In response to a question from Clir B Singh the Assistant Director — Investment
Management and Stewardship confirmed that private equity allocations consisted of
a variety of underlying investment funds and performance was specific to individual
managers and their strategies.

In response to a question raised by Martin Clift, Trade Union Representative,
regarding Investments in the energy sector and engagement with companies with
regards to profits and price levels, the Assistant Director — Investment Management
and Stewardship confirmed that engagement formed part of the Fund’s stewardship
activity and was ongoing.

Resolved:
1. That the global market and investment update paper prepared by the Fund’s
Investment Consultant, Redington be noted.
2. That the Asset Allocation and Performance Reporting for the WMPF, Main
Fund and Admitted Body Separate Funds be noted.

Responsible Investment Activities

Shiventa Sivanesan, Assistant Director — Investment Management and Stewardship,
presented the report on the work undertaken in relation to responsible investment
activities since the last Pensions Committee meeting.

The Assistant Director — Investment Management and Stewardship was pleased to
confirm the Financial Reporting Committee (FRC) had confirmed the Fund’s
continued status, as a signatory to the UK Stewardship Code. Following the Fund’s
second annual stewardship report submission in April 2022, it was noted that the
FRC had acknowledged the improvements made by the Fund since the report was
first submitted last year.

The Fund continues to engage on a wide range of issues, prioritising the
engagement themes as set out in the Responsible Investment Framework:
Climate Change

Sustainable food systems

Human rights

Responsible financial management.

The Committee were advised that a number of Company Annual General Meetings
had taken place during the quarter and a significant amount of voting activity had
taken place in line with the Fund’s Voting policy which was highlighted within the
report.

It was noted that the Fund continues to receive requests, questions and
communications on a range of topics from members of the public and that the Fund
continues to review and respond to correspondence, signposting activity and action
across a range of investment and engagement activities.

Page 9



12

13

14

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

In response to a question raised by ClIr Hyatt regarding the success rate of
engagement in relation to voting, the Assistant Director — Investment Management
and Stewardship advised that both were powerful tools for investors and that votes
can be significant with regards to prompting companies to engage with investors
regarding concerns.

In response to a question raised by ClIr B Singh regarding emerging market equity
exposure, the Assistant Director — Investment Management and Stewardship
advised that investments within emerging markets equity exposure were currently
under review, the results of which would be fed back to the Committee once the
review had concluded.

Resolved:

1. That the Fund’'s engagement and voting activity for the three months ending
30 June 2022 [Appendices A and B] be noted.

2. That the Fund has retained its signatory status to the UK Stewardship
Code, following submission of its second Annual Stewardship Report to the
Financial Reporting Council (FRC) in April 2022 be noted.

3. That the issues discussed by Local Authority Pension Fund Forum (LAPFF)
are set out in the Quarterly Engagement Report, which is available on the
LAPFF website: LAPFF-QER-2022-Q2.pdf (lapfforum.org) be noted.

4. That the voting and engagement activity of Local Government Pension
Scheme (LGPS) Central, as set out in the Quarterly Stewardship Report,
available on the LGPS Central website: LGPSC-Stewardship-Update-Q1-
2022-2023.pdf (Igpscentral.co.uk) be noted.

5. That the research and engagement activity undertaken by EOS at Federated
Hermes as set out in the Quarterly Engagement Report, which is available
on the EOS website: EOS Public Engagement Report (hermes-
investment.com) be noted.

Exclusion of press and public

Resolved:

That in accordance with Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the
press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business as
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information falling within the paragraph 3
of Schedule 12A of the Act.

Investment Strategy and Activity Update

Shiventa Sivanesan, Assistant Director — Investment Management and Stewardship,
presented the report on the investment strategy and activity in the WMPF and
Admitted Body Separate Funds over the quarter.

Resolved:
1. That the update on the development and implementation of investment
strategies for the Main Pension Fund and Admitted Body Separate Funds be
noted.

2022 Actuarial Valuation Update

Simon Taylor, Assistant Director (Pensions), presented the report on the matters
relevant to the triennial review of the Funding Strategy Statement over 2022/23 and
delivery of the 2022 actuarial valuation.

Page 10


https://lapfforum.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/LAPFF-Q2-QER.pdf
https://www.lgpscentral.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/08/LGPSC-Stewardship-Update-Q1-2022-23.pdf
https://www.lgpscentral.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/08/LGPSC-Stewardship-Update-Q1-2022-23.pdf
https://www.hermes-investment.com/uploads/2022/07/2967567df5c6c3c1c53a930db8b9ed9a/eos-public-engagement-report-q2-2022-spread-v2.pdf
https://www.hermes-investment.com/uploads/2022/07/2967567df5c6c3c1c53a930db8b9ed9a/eos-public-engagement-report-q2-2022-spread-v2.pdf

15

16

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Resolved:
1. That the report and the associated update on progress with the 2022 actuarial
valuation of the Fund be noted.
2. That the wider considerations for assumption setting aligned to the 2022
actuarial valuation be noted.
3. That the update on the associated employer covenant review in the context of
the Fund’s Integrated Risk Management Framework be noted.

Fund recruitment and resourcing

Rachel Brothwood, Executive Director of Pensions, presented the report on the
measures being taken to recruit, review and build resilience within the Fund’s
resource and operational delivery.

Resolved:

1. That the progress with ongoing recruitment activity, including following
changes to the Senior Management team be noted.

2. That the continued increase in competition for resource and skills in specialist
roles and functions within the Fund, together with the activity underway to
review resource plans be noted.

3. That the developing resilience review and action planning underway to
mitigate key person risk be noted.

LGPSC Pooling and Shareholder Update

Rachel Brothwood, Executive Director of Pensions, presented the report on the
matters to be considered by Shareholders at the LGPS Central Limited Annual
General Meeting on 27 September, highlights from the Company’s 2022/23 Annual
Report and the forward-plan for the development of the Company’s 2023/24
business plan and budget.

Resolved:

1. That the Executive Director’s update on Shareholder business relating to
LGPS Central Limited be noted.

2. That the Annual Report of LGPS Central Limited for 2021/22, published on 1
September 2022, be noted.

3. That the work underway to finalise the LGPS Central pool annual report to the
Department for Levelling Up Housing and Communities (DLUHC) and inform
discussion on the Company’s 2023/24 business plan and budget be noted.

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



This report is PUBLIC

Agenda Item No: 5

wowvimaveron | Pensions Committee
counNctt 14 December 2022
Report title Responsible Investment Activities

Originating service

Accountable
employee

Report to be/has been
considered by

Pension Services

Shiventa Sivanesan  Assistant Director — Investment Management
and Stewardship

Tel 01902 556659

Email Shiventa.Sivanesan@wolverhampton.gov.uk
Rachel Brothwood Executive Director of Pensions

Tel 01902 551715

Email Rachel.Brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk

Recommendations for decision:
The Pensions Committee is asked to note and approve:

1. Publication of the Fund’s 2022 Taskforce for Climate-related Financial Disclosure
(TCFD) Report [Appendix A].

2. The Fund’'s 2022 Responsible Investment Framework [Appendix B].

Recommendations for noting:
The Pensions Committee is asked to note:

1. The Fund’s engagement and voting activity for the three months ending 30 September
2022 [Appendices C and D].

2. The issues discussed by the Local Authority Pension Fund Forum (LAPFF) are set out
in the Quarterly Engagement Report, which is available on the LAPFF website:
LAPFF-QER-2022-Q3-Final.pdf (lapfforum.org)

3. The voting and engagement activity of the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS) Central, as set out in the Quarterly Stewardship Report, available on the
LGPS Central website: LGPSC-Stewardship-Update-Q2-2022-2023.pdf
(Igpscentral.co.uk)

Page 13



https://lapfforum.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/10/LAPFF-QER-2022-Q3-Final.pdf
https://www.lgpscentral.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/11/LGPS-Central-Stewardship-Update-July-Sep-2022.pdf
https://www.lgpscentral.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/11/LGPS-Central-Stewardship-Update-July-Sep-2022.pdf
mailto:Rachel.Brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk

1.0
1.1

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

This report is PUBLIC

4. The research and engagement activity undertaken by EOS at Federated Hermes as

set out in the Public Engagement Report, which is available on the EOS website: EOS
Public Engagement Report (hermes-investment.com)

Purpose

To update the Pensions Committee on the work undertaken in relation to responsible
investment activities since the prior Pensions Committee meeting.

Background

The Fund has a longstanding policy of supporting good corporate governance in the
companies in which it invests. The Fund will also challenge companies who do not meet
either the standards set by their peers or reasonable expectations as measured by best
practice. The Fund’s approach is part of its overall investment management
arrangements and its active Responsible Investment Framework. There are three main
pillars to the framework: selection (of assets), stewardship (of assets), and transparency
and disclosure.

Taskforce for Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD)

The climate crisis continues to be at the forefront of investors’ concerns due to the
potential materialisation of climate-related risks and their impact to investments,
communities and nature. As a result, the Fund continues to assess, monitor and manage
its climate-related risks. This is the sixth year in which the Fund has disclosed its action
and approach to assessing and managing the risks associated with climate change and
is an area which the Fund continues to develop. Further information is provided in the
report in Appendix A.

Responsible Investment Framework

The Fund has reviewed and updated its Responsible Investment Framework that outlines
the Fund’s guiding principles and approach to Responsible Investment. A copy of the
updated document is provided in Appendix B. The Responsible Investment Framework is
a critical element of the investment process ensuring that the Fund continues to build a
sustainable future for all by considering environmental, social and governance factors
within its approach. Changes made to the Framework in 2022 reflect the evolution of the
Fund’s Responsible Investment approach since prior review and approval in March 2021,
including:

e Reference to the Fund’s update Climate Change Framework and Strategy 2021,
including Net Zero commitment;

e The Fund’s signatory status to the 2020 UK Stewardship Code (in 2021 and
2022); and

e Review and re-statement of the Fund’s commitment and core engagement theme
of Human Rights.

Page 14


https://www.hermes-investment.com/uploads/2022/10/3ed371015c173760657d97f153087f1c/eos-public-engagement-report-q3-2022.pdf
https://www.hermes-investment.com/uploads/2022/10/3ed371015c173760657d97f153087f1c/eos-public-engagement-report-q3-2022.pdf

24

2.5

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

This report is PUBLIC

The Intuitional Investors Group on Climate Change (IIGCC) Target Disclosure

As part of ongoing work with IGCC and the Paris Aligned Asset Owners Initiative,
following the quarter-end the Fund, as part of its signatory obligations, submitted its
disclosure statement around its net zero targets and plans for aiming to continue to
develop its approach and framework to achieve its commitments.

Local Government Pension Scheme (England and Wales): Governance and Reporting of
Climate Change Risks Consultation

Following the quarter-end, the Fund responded to the consultation by the Department for
Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC) regarding the mandatory reporting on
the assessment, management and disclosure of climate-related risks. The Fund’s early
adoption of voluntary TCFD reporting framed its responses and submission. A copy of
the Fund’s response has been shared with the Committee.

Responsible Investment Activities
Engagement Through Partnerships

The Fund’s strategy is to engage with its investee companies and other key stakeholders
through partnerships and on its own. The Fund aims to protect and increase shareholder
value by engaging on a range of financially material environmental, social and
governance (ESG) investment factors. A significant part of the Fund’s engagement
programme is implemented through partnerships including LAPFF, EOS at Federated
Hermes (‘EOS’ - via a contract held by LGPS Central Ltd, the Fund’s investment pool
operator), the IIGCC, Climate Action 100+ (CA 100+), the Transition Pathway Initiative
(TPI), and the Principles for Responsible Investment (PRI).

Through LAPFF, the Fund engaged 36 companies during the quarter', addressing
climate change, human rights, and governance issues. Engagements were generally
conducted through letter writing or meetings; 2 company engagements are currently
categorised as change in process, whilst substantial and moderate improvements were
documented in 8 engagements.

This quarter LGPS Central undertook 831 engagements with 313 companies on behalf of
the Fund, the majority of which were carried out by CA100+.

Climate Change

During the quarter LAPFF undertook 10 climate change engagements. 10 of these
companies are categorised as in dialogue with a further 3 showing improvement.

This quarter, LAPFF issued a voting alert recommending a vote against National Grid’s
transition plan. This involved concerns that despite draft climate action plans from
Massachusetts and New York state agencies proposing nearly 10 million households
adopting electric heat pumps by 2050, National Grid still envisaged 50% of households in

" This is a consolidated figure representing the number of companies engaged, not the number of engagements.

Page 15



3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

This report is PUBLIC

these states to have some form of gas burning system. National Grid representatives
provided more detail on 1.5°C alignment and the challenge for the gas business in the
US. Correspondence has been sent to National Grid to identify and overcome potential
policy barriers in relation to the decarbonisation of the powers and utilities sectors.

Mizhuo, a financial service company in Japan, established medium targets for the carbon
intensity of the electric power sector following a collaborative meeting in July. This used
the lower end of the International Energy Agency (IEA) Net Zero Emissions by 2050
Scenario, and the upper end of the IEA’s Sustainable Development Scenario. Mizhuo
also has an engagement policy to support clients managing transition risks with a trigger
when clients show no willingness or relevant strategy to address transition risks in one
year. LAPFF will continue to engage with Asia-based utilities and financial companies.

This quarter, LGPS Central’s climate change engagement set comprised 191 companies
with 310 engagements issues and objectives?. Most engagements were undertaken via
CA100+ with progress on 144 specific engagement objectives.

LGPS Central and EOS’s engagement with NextEra centres around the ongoing CA100+
initiative. Following votes against the Chair at NextEra Energy’s (NEE) Annual General
Meeting (AGM) in May, due to inadequate management of climate-related risks, NEE
announced net zero goals by 2045 without reliance on offsets for their Scope 1 and 2
emissions. CA100+ investors are pushing for a meeting at board level to discuss the
gaps including clear pathways for absolute emission reductions, capex alignment with
the real net zero target and policy advocacy.

This quarter, LGPS Central voted against Barclay’s Climate Strategy, Targets and
Progress 2022 report in May 2022. Barclays have used the International Energy
Agency’s Net Zero by 2050 Roadmap for the Energy Sector (IEA NZE2050) analysis as
a reference and has set specific 2030 sector emissions intensity targets for energy,
power generation, cement, and steel. These target ranges for emission intensity are not
fully aligned with IEA’s NZE analysis and some of their restrictive policies are insufficient.
Engagement will continue focusing on their climate transition efforts and updates to
targets phasing out the financing of US thermal coal power generation by 2030.

Sustainable Food Systems

This quarter, LGPS Central actions on the Sustainable Food Systems theme engaged
with 11 companies with 15 engagement issues and objectivess.

The Global Commitment, led by the Ellen MacAuthur Foundation (EMF) with the UN
Environment Programme, is an initiative with more than 500 organisations aiming to
develop a circular economy by reusing, recycling and composting plastic. For companies,
who have signed up to the Global Commitment, the use of virgin plastics has peaked.
Plastics have been mainly eliminated through recycling, but more efforts are required in
terms of redesign and reusing plastics. From an investor’s perspective, companies will

2 There can be more than one climate-related engagement issue and/or objective per company.
3 There can be more than one sustainable food systems related engagement issue and/or objective per company.

Page 16



3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

3.17

This report is PUBLIC

need to have clear strategies on plastic including plastic reporting and switching to
sustainable alternatives.

Human Rights

This quarter our human rights related engagements comprised 54 companies with 93
engagement issues and objectives.

The LAPFF Chair travelled to Brazil to investigate the communities affected by tailings
dams in Conceigao do Mato Dentro, Mariana, and Brumadinho. This trip was an element
of LAPFF’s broader work on mining and human rights, which is highlighted in the mining
and human rights report LAPFF published in April 2022. The motivation for the trip
reflects LAPFF’s view that social and environmental impacts by investee companies are
financially material for investors.

LAPFF continues to investigate issues of Uyghur forced labour in Xinjiang and other
regions of China. LAPFF joined the Investor Alliance for Human Rights Uyghur Region
Engagement Group earlier in the year. The Forum reached out to the Australian Strategic
Policy Institute (ASPI), which produced the report ‘Uyghurs for Sale’ in March 2020,
linking 82 global brands to factories in the Xinjiang region to potential cases of forced
Uyghur Labour. Following LAPFF’s meeting with ASPI representatives, it was implied
that companies operating in the Xinjiang region could not undertake the thorough levels
of due diligence they were claiming to be able to do. LAPFF followed up with questions to
both Cisco and Dell after meetings earlier in the year, but neither company responded.

EOS at Federated Hermes continue to engage with technology companies on a broad
range of human rights such as freedom of expression, data protection, content
moderation and other industry-specific issues. With Meta Platforms, Inc. EOS
participated in a joint investor call regarding eliminating emotional bias from artificial
intelligence; dissemination of paid and labelled political content and acknowledge tension
between freedom of expression and hate speech, bullying, misinformation etc. Meta has
improved disclosure on children’s rights but is lacking metrics and targets to show the
effectiveness of their efforts.

Responsible Financial Management

This quarter, our tax transparency engagement set comprised 5 companies with 5
engagement issues and objectives. There was progress on 1 specific engagement
objective against a total of 4 objectives.

Experian has published a standalone tax report, following engagement with LGPS
Central. The expectation is for companies to disclose tax-relevant Country-by-Country-
Reporting (CBCR) showing jurisdiction-wise activities and tax paid. Experian was
encouraged to disclose a tax contribution report including CBCR, using the Global
Reporting Initiative (GRI) Tax Standard 207. LGPS Central believe that the company
meets the core element of the standard with room for improvements in relation to CBCR.
Experian plans to incorporate feedback in their tax report next year.

Page 17



3.18

3.19

3.20

3.21

3.22

3.23

This report is PUBLIC

Voting Globally

The Fund’s Voting Principles are currently executed by EOS via a contract held by LGPS
Central Ltd, the Fund’s asset pool company. The Fund has contributed to and endorses
LGPS Central’s Voting Principles.

The voting activity for the quarter across markets and issues can be found in Appendix D.
During the period, the Fund voted at a total of 277 company meetings (3,260 resolutions)
— 116 UK, 40 Europe, 33 North American, 44 Developed Asia, 14 Australasian and 30 in
Emerging and Frontier Markets. At 120 meetings the Fund recommended opposing one
or more resolutions. The largest number of resolutions that were opposed concerned
board structure and remuneration (usually voting against non-independent non-executive
directors where the Fund or its advisors do not see sufficient independent oversight on a
company board).

Voting Key Highlights

LGPS Central voted against the reappointment and remuneration of the Director at
Reliance Industries Ltd. As a member of the Governance committee, his role is
prominent to the company’s climate action and yet company performances on climate
change was below expectations in comparison to others in the oil and gas sector. This
included failure to disclosure Scope 3 emissions. This proposal did not meet the required
shareholder support to be passed, therefore LGPS Central will continue to raise concerns
on climate change and governance issues.

LGPS Central supported a proposal requiring General Mills to report absolute reduction
in plastic packaging use. General Mills has already set goals to make 100% of its
packaging recycled or recyclable by 2030 and investing in a flexible film recycling facility.
But in comparison to its peers who have joined the Ellen MacArthur New Plastics
Economy Global Commitment, the company is lagging. Multiple US states have enacted
legalisation placing the responsibility of post-consumer package waste on companies
and adopting minimum recycled content standards. With these significant risks, the
resolution passed with 56.5% votes. The company is currently undergoing engagement
with EOS at Federated Hermes on deforestations matters also.

LGPS Central supported a shareholder proposal at Sainsbury’s AGM in July on Living
Wage accreditations. As a proactive company in paying minimum wages, LGPS Central
believes that Sainsburys should set an industry example by being Living Wage
accredited. This would involve paying indirect workers, such as cleaners and security
staff, real living wage and support staff and broader society during the cost-of-living
crisis. The proposal received 16.7% support but failed to pass.

LGPS Central supported eight shareholder proposals at Tesla’s AGM in August including
reporting climate change lobbying in line with the Paris Agreement. While there is no
evidence of misalignment between Tesla’s lobbying and the Paris Agreement objective,
additional disclosure would facilitate better management of climate-related opportunities
and risks. This received 34.3% support. Another proposal involved eradicating child
labour in the company’s battery supply chain, which received 10.4% votes.

Page 18



3.24

3.25

4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1
8.2

8.3

9.0

9.1

This report is PUBLIC

Correspondence

The Fund continues to receive correspondence from individual members of the public,
and more established divestment groups in connection with climate change, arms and
weapons manufacturers, agricultural livestock production, human rights issues and calls
for divestment. During the quarter the Fund received queries and correspondence on
responsible investment topics relating to investment in Occupied Palestine Territories
(OPT). LAPFF is continuing a programme of engagement over 2022 on behalf of the
Fund and is monitoring both UN activity and the developing political situation in OPT
areas. Pensions Committee will be kept abreast of progress.

The Fund continues to respond to all correspondents and will continue to monitor
progress on the issues outlined, with updates to each quarterly Pensions Committee
Meeting.

Financial Implications

The promotion of good corporate governance amongst companies in which the Fund
invests is complementary to the Fund’s objective of maximising financial returns, as it is
widely believed that good corporate governance improves shareholder value in the long
term.

Legal Implications

This report contains no direct legal implications.
Equalities Implications

This report contains no equal opportunities implications.
Other Potential Implications

This report contains no other potential implications
Schedule of Background Papers

LAPFF Quarterly Engagement Report: LAPFF-QER-2022-Q3-Final.pdf (lapfforum.org)

LGPS Central Quarterly Stewardship Update: LGPSC-Stewardship-Update-Q2-2022-
2023.pdf (Igpscentral.co.uk)

EOS at Federated Hermes Public Engagement Report:
EOS Public Engagement Report (hermes-investment.com)

Schedule of Appendices

Appendix A — 2022 Taskforce for Climate-related Financial Disclosure (TCFD) Report

Page 19


https://lapfforum.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/10/LAPFF-QER-2022-Q3-Final.pdf
https://www.lgpscentral.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/11/LGPS-Central-Stewardship-Update-July-Sep-2022.pdf
https://www.lgpscentral.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/11/LGPS-Central-Stewardship-Update-July-Sep-2022.pdf
https://www.lgpscentral.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/08/LGPSC-Stewardship-Update-Q1-2022-23.pdf
https://www.hermes-investment.com/uploads/2022/10/3ed371015c173760657d97f153087f1c/eos-public-engagement-report-q3-2022.pdf

This report is PUBLIC

9.2 Appendix B — 2022 Responsible Investment Framework
9.3 Appendix C — WMPF Engagement Activity

9.4  Appendix D — WMPF Voting Activity

Page 20



RESPONSIBLE INVESTMENT
FRAMEWORK

DECEMBER 2022




CONTENTS

RESPONSIBLE INVESTMENT FRAMEWORK « DECEMBER 2022

1

Purpose

2 Beliefs And Guiding Principles

- Investment Beliefs

- Engagement And Collaboration

- Remuneration And Cost Management

- Climate Change

Implementation

Selection

- Fund Manager Due Diligence

- Fund Manager Appointments

- Fund Manager Monitoring

- LGPS Central Limited

Stewardship

- Engagement Through Partnerships

- Company Engagement

- Industry Engagement

- Shareholder Litigation

- Voting

Transparency And Disclosure

O V|V | W W|(|W| W|W VNN N[O OO LW ||| DD W

4 Engagement Themes For 2020-23
Climate Change
Sustainable Food Systems 10
Human Rights 10
Responsible Financial Management 10
5 Memberships And Affiliations n
6 Appendix: Glossary Of Terms 12




RESPONSIBLE INVESTMENT FRAMEWORK + DECEMBER 2022

1 PURPOSE

This framework defines West Midlands Pension Fund’s (“the Fund”) commitment to
responsible investment (RI). Its purpose is to detail the approach that the Fund aims to
follow in integrating environmental, social and governance (ESG) considerations into its
investment strategy and implementation. It informs and is supplementary to the Fund’s
Investment Strategy Statement, aligning with the Fund’s investment beliefs and fiduciary

duty.

Investment
Strategy
Statement

Responsible Disclosure
Investment
Framework

Regulations

This framework has been developed in the context of relevant regulations, statutory
guidance, and the advice of the Law Commission. Under the framework, the Fund
applies a three-pillar approach to implementation: Selection, Stewardship and
Reporting & Disclosure. This document sets out the overarching framework for
Responsible Investment and supporting practical application of the Climate Change
Strategy and FrameworR, Statement of Alignment with the UK Stewardship Code
and Voting Principles.

The Pensions Committee is, at all times, responsible for the Fund’s investments,
including responsible investment beliefs and guiding principles which inform the
development and review of RI policy. Responsibility for oversight and implementation
of the Fund’s RI framework sits with the Executive Director of Pensions, supported by
the Assistant Directors. This framework applies to all members of the Pensions
Committee and the Fund officers.

The Pensions Committee reviews the framework annually, or at times the Fund sees
fit to revise its RI policies and procedures. This statement updates and replaces the
March 2021 Responsible Investment Framework. A draft statement was presented to
the Pensions Committee on 14 December 2022 for approval.

Page 23



4 RESPONSIBLE INVESTMENT FRAMEWORK ¢ DECEMBER 2022

2 BELIEFS AND GUIDING PRINCIPLES

The term “responsible investment” refers to the integration of financially material
environmental, social, and corporate governance (“ESG”) factors into investment
processes. It has relevance both before and after the investment decision and is a

core part of fiduciary duty. It is distinct from “ethical investment”, which is an approach
in which the moral persuasions of an organisation take primacy over its investment
considerations.

Please refer to the glossary for more definitions of terms.

Investment Beliefs
The Fund’s Statement of Investment Beliefs, set out in the Fund’s Investment Strategy
Statement, cover:

Financial market beliefs — The Fund adopts a long-term approach to investing as its
liabilities stretch far into the future, but in doing so, seeks to take a proactive approach
to the management of assets taking into account the risk/return profile of different
investment opportunities over a range of time periods

Governance beliefs — The Fund believes having effective governance structures and
policies will enable rigorous and tested decision making and will add value to the Fund
over the longer-term. Transparency and cost effectiveness provide key tenets of being a
well-governed Fund.

Investment strategy — The Fund’s investment strategy will encompass its approach to
risk management, risk tolerance, liquidity and levels of return required to meet its
strategic objectives. The Fund will set its strategic asset allocation to deliver the long-
term returns required to meet its funding needs, taking into account, diversification,
the requirement to remain agile, risk and cost of implementation, recognising that risk
should be viewed both qualitatively and quantitively.

Responsible investment — As long-term owners of capital (assets), the Fund believes
that investing responsibly is key to ensuring the long-term value of the assets in
which it invests is protected and where possible, enhanced. Investing responsibly
and engaging as long-term owners reduces risk over time and has been proven to
positively impact investment returns. The Fund is integrating responsible investment
into the way it selects and stewards all assets.

Climate change — The Fund adopts an evidence-based approach to climate change
and believes there is overwhelming evidence to support that climate changes poses
both risks and opportunities to the Fund’s investments. The Fund will consider the
impact of climate change in both its asset allocation and investment process when
making decisions.

Page 24



RESPONSIBLE INVESTMENT FRAMEWORK ¢ DECEMBER 2022 5

Engagement and Collaboration

The Fund prefers to adopt a policy of risk monitoring and engagement to positively
influence company behaviour and enhance shareholder value, influence that would
be lost through a divestment approach. In scenarios in which engagement fails, an
appropriate escalation methodology may be adopted. The Fund extends this principle
of “engagement for positive change” to the due diligence, appointment, and
monitoring of fund managers.

The Fund believes that it will improve its effectiveness by acting collectively with other
like-minded investors because it increases the likelihood that they will be heard by the
company, fund manager or other relevant stakeholder compared with acting alone.
The Fund recognises the need to operate at a market-wide level to promote
improvements and develop effective Rl processes that will help it to deliver
sustainable long-term growth.

Remuneration and Cost Management

Executive remuneration and investment management costs matter, particularly in
low-return environments. Fee arrangements with fund managers and the remuneration
policies of investee companies should be aligned with the Fund’s long-term interests.
The Fund recognises that it is part of its fiduciary duty to ensure that there is appropriate
alignment and notes that the now industry-wide cost transparency initiatives the Fund
has led on have been pivotal in aiding greater understanding of cost to enable improved
alignment and cost management.

Climate Change

Financial markets could be materially impacted by climate change and by the response
of climate policymakers. The Fund has developed evidenced-based beliefs relating to
climate change to assist in monitoring and managing this specific area of risk and
opportunity and this is outlined in more detail within the Climate Change Framework
and Strategy, most recently updated over 2021. As a responsible investor, the Fund will
seek to proactively manage this risk factor through stewardship activities, using
partnerships of like-minded investors where feasible.

The Fund is a strong supporter of the Paris Agreement on climate change and believes
that policy makers, consumers, companies, and investors have a role to play in
increasing awareness and enabling a just transition through strong governance.

As part of commitments to net zero by 2050 or sooner, the Fund aims to continue

to develop best practice strategies and solutions to support this change alongside
other industry actors. Noting that climate-aware decisions will be better with accurate,
relevant, complete, and comparable data, the Fund is engaging to increase disclosure
and aid development of policy instruments.

The Fund undertakes and discloses its assessment of financial risk associated
with climate change and inherent within the investment portfolio, in line with
recommendations made by the Taskforce for Climate-related Financial Disclosure
(TCFD).

No individual investor nor the investment industry is influential enough to achieve the
rate of change required to avoid catastrophic consequences highlighting the importance
of collaborative and collective progress required. The Fund supports increasing regulation
and guidance for UK pension funds taking effect in 2023 to assess, manage and publish
actions on climate change.

Page 25



6 RESPONSIBLE INVESTMENT FRAMEWORK ¢ DECEMBER 2022

3 IMPLEMENTATION

Responsible Investment

Selection

Transparency & Disclosure

Either directly or through Fund management arrangements, the Fund aims to put its
responsible investment beliefs into practice through actions taken both before the
investment decision (which we refer to as ‘the selection of investments’) and after
the investment decision (‘the stewardship of investments’).

The Fund is aiming for full integration of responsible investment principles throughout
investment strategy, process, and monitoring, with evidence of increasing use of
environment, social and governance (ESG) risk factors in decision making throughout
the investment value chain.

The Fund aims to be transparent to its stakeholders through regular, high-quality
disclosure. Disclosures are made quarterly through Pensions Committee meetings,
regular updates to the Fund’s website and annually through the Fund’s Annual Report
and Accounts and the Climate-related Disclosure Report. Together these ambitions yield
the Fund’s three RI pillars: Selection, Stewardship and Transparency and Disclosure.

Selection

The Fund aims to be aware of and monitor financially material Rl issues in the context of
investment and manager selection, whether this is through directly appointed external
managers, or funds managed by LGPS Central Ltd. The Fund extends this principle of
‘engagement for positive change’ to the due diligence, appointment, and monitoring of
fund managers across all asset classes.

Fund Manager Due Diligence
The Fund collects the following information from each manager before they are
appointed, where applicable to the asset class:

Copy of their RI or stewardship policies (or equivalent) which articulates how RI
factors, whether stemming from research, stewardship activities or other sources,
are integrated into their investment process.

Case studies or examples of where Rl issues have influenced an investment decision.

Information on the process for integrating any third-party Rl data into their company
financial models, investment strategies and portfolio construction.

Fee transparency and evidence of disclosure, noting commitment to sign-up to the
LGPS Code of Transparency as a condition of appointment.

Page 26



RESPONSIBLE INVESTMENT FRAMEWORK ¢ DECEMBER 2022

Rl reporting format, incorporating both quantitative and qualitative risk assessment.

Whether they are a signatory of the UN-backed Principles for Responsible Investment
(PRI) and 2020 UK (or other) Stewardship Code.

Fund Manager Appointments

The Fund assesses the RI capability of a Fund manager as a factor within each of the
people, process, and performance categories. In its decision to appoint a Fund manager,
the Fund takes a balanced consideration of all relevant factors including RI. However,
the Fund will pay particular attention to adherence to relevant soft regulatory codes
depending on the market in which it invests.

In practice, this means the Fund is willing to hire a fund manager at an early stage of
developing its Rl approach so long as there is a demonstrable Rl commitment and a
willingness to improve in their approach over a short and defined time period.

In alignment with the guiding principle on “Engagement and Collaboration”, the Fund
believes that there is added value in working managers to develop their approach.

Fund Manager Monitoring

Each Fund manager is expected to report' at agreed intervals to the Fund on how their
Rl activities are contributing to improved long-term risk-adjusted returns. Examples of
information that can be provided in aid of this objective include but are not limited to
the following:

The evolution of how the manager integrates the consideration of Rl issues into its
investment and stewardship activities.

How investment and stewardship functions are combined to protect and/or enhance
value.

Any outcomes arising from the manager’s engagement with companies and their
effectiveness.

Financial metrics used to assess the risks within the portfolio and how these change
over time and/or relative to comparable benchmarks.

LGPS Central Limited

Since April 2018, Fund assets have transitioned into the LGPS investment pool, and
pooled vehicles created by LGPS Central Limited. The pool company has developed a
leading approach to R, requiring all products to meet and retain a standard for RI-
integration and thereby supporting Partner Funds in the execution of their individual
Rl policies. Rl integration features in the investment process for all major asset classes;
a suite of Rl polices are in place together with an appointed engagement provider to
support regular engagement, monitoring and reporting.

'Refers to either formal written reporting and tﬂ&g@lzeﬂ)al communications, which can be regular
and/or ad-hoc in frequency.



8 RESPONSIBLE INVESTMENT FRAMEWORK ¢ DECEMBER 2022

Stewardship

Engagement Through Partnerships

The Fund’s strategy is to engage with its investee companies and other key stakeholders
through partnerships. The Fund aims to protect and increase shareholder value by
engaging on a range of financially material ESG investment factors. A significant part of
the Fund’s engagement programme is implemented through partnerships as detailed in
Memberships and Affiliations.

Company Engagement

The Fund’s approach includes bottom-up engagement — which targets improvements on
specific issues at individual companies — and top-down engagement — which identifies
themes of long-term economic significance and of relevance for stakeholders. The Fund
will, either directly, collaboratively or through specialist service providers or Fund
management arrangements:

hold constructive dialogue with investee companies;
encourage the disclosure by companies of Rl issues;
participate in the development of public policy on Rl issues; and

disclose and maintain a policy for identifying and managing conflicts of interest with
the aim of taking all reasonable steps to put the interests of the Fund’s beneficiaries
first.

Industry Engagement

To address the global challenges and initiate change, collaboration is required from all
stakeholders, such as public policy makers, regulators, trade bodies, indexes, and other
players in the financial markets. These global challenges present risks and obstacles that
affect the way we invest and uphold our duty to pension members and fall within the
Fund’s fiduciary responsibilities. Therefore, with other like-minded investors, the Fund
may engage with these bodies in policy advocacy, developing regulations or signing
investor letters and statements.

The Fund considers these initiatives on a case-by-case basis.

Shareholder Litigation

The Fund may be eligible to participate in certain individual and class action securities
litigation. Securities litigation may be used as an escalation technique within an
engagement process. There are a number of litigation options available when a
company has violated securities laws that result in losses to the Fund.

For US-based claims, the options would be to:
remain in the class action and file proof of claim through our claims administrator;
participate as a lead plaintiff in a class action; or
opt out and file a private action.

For non-US based claims, the options would be to join an existing group action or file a
group action as a lead plaintiff.

Page 28



RESPONSIBLE INVESTMENT FRAMEWORK ¢ DECEMBER 2022

The Fund takes a case-by-case approach in determining whether or not to join a class
action but considers factors such as:

advantages and disadvantages of the Fund becoming actively involved;
relative size of the Fund'’s potential losses compared to other organisations;
likelihood of success; and

whether the Fund is fully indemnified against costs, expenses, counterclaims, and any
other losses.

Voting

Voting is a valuable tool that allows the Fund is exercise its rights as a shareholder to
drive and influence the direction of the company. Hence, the Fund has developed a
separate voting policy which can be found at www.wmpfonline.com.

Transparency and Disclosure
The Fund aims to keep its beneficiaries aware of its Rl activities through:

disclosing RI policy publicly, e.g. voting policies, Climate Change Framework and
Strategy;

providing a summary of the Fund’s Rl activities, including voting activity?, in the
Annual Report and Accounts;

providing a summary of the Fund’s Rl activities in the quarterly reports to the Fund’s
Pensions Committee;

publishing aggregate voting and company engagement statistics on a quarterly basis;
disclosing the outcomes of its voting decisions on a vote-by-vote basis; and

disclosing the Fund’s approach to managing climate change risk using the
recommendations made by the Taskforce on Climate-related Financial
Disclosures framework (TCFD).

4 ENGAGEMENT THEMES FOR 2020-23

The Fund has selected four engagement themes for the financial year: climate change;
sustainable food systems; human rights; and responsible financial management.

As part of continuous review, these engagement themes may be revised in 2023 to
reflect on relevance and priority.

Climate Change

The Fund adopts an evidence-based approach to climate change and believes there

is overwhelming evidence to support that climate changes poses both risks and
opportunities to the Fund’s investments. It is the Fund’s view that the scale of these
impacts is such that a proactive and precautionary approach is needed to address
them through the integration of net zero practices into the Fund’s investment strategy.
The Fund has a proactive programme of climate change stewardship, primarily by
leveraging its strategic partnerships and through its support to the Transition Pathway
Initiative, the Climate Action 100+ Initiative, and the Institutional Investor Group on
Climate Change.

Page 29

?In line with Regulation 57 of the 2013 Regulations.



10 RESPONSIBLE INVESTMENT FRAMEWORK ¢ DECEMBER 2022

Sustainable Food Systems

A sustainable food system is one that delivers food and nutrition security for all in such
a way that the economic, social, and environmental bases for future generations are

not compromised. There has been a shift among consumers who are increasingly aware
of, and concerned by, the climate impacts of the food they eat and how sustainably it is
produced. The Fund aims to participate in organisations aiming to tackles these issues,
particularly the damage that single-use plastics has on the environment. The Fund is
keen to engage alongside partners in highlighting the risks that single-use plastics pose
to longer term financial returns.

Human Rights

Human rights include civil, political, economic, and social and cultural rights, such as

the right to life, the right to freedom of association or the right to health. People play a
pivotal role within companies and the global economy, therefore ensuring their basic
human rights are met, is not only financial factor, but the responsibility of the companies
to show respect for human rights and their people. The Fund is actively aiming to address
issues associated with human rights through the research, analysis and engagements
conducted by all engagement partners including the Local Authority Pensions Fund
Forum and LGPS Central pool.

The Fund believes that a diverse and inclusive workplace can provide benefits to a
company. It signals to a company’s strength to innovate, overcome challenges and
retain talent that results in higher financial returns. As a representative of an asset
owner diversity working group, the Fund aims to pursue greater gender and ethnicity
diversity within the investment industry. Fund stewardship work incorporates a drive
for wider-ranging action on equality and inclusion to drive change and increase
representation and involvement by all.

Responsible Financial Management

The Fund supports the practice of responsible financial management. The avoidance

of tax by some large multinationals has attracted a great deal of criticism, and small
businesses shouldering a heavier tax burden have struggled to compete. Instead, more
companies are now taking a long-term view that investment in the community and the
society in which they operate by paying taxes will ultimately lead to greater prosperity
for the business too. As governments, companies and global economies look to “build
back better” over 2021, increased focused on financing and reporting arrangements is
expected to increase both to demonstrate action on climate change and to respond to
demands to reconsider social value. The Fund aims to monitor and address these issues
through the work of their engagement partnerships and collaborations.

Page 30



RESPONSIBLE INVESTMENT FRAMEWORK ¢ DECEMBER 2022 1

5 MEMBERSHIPS AND AFFILIATIONS

Organisation/Initiative Name About the Organisation/Initiative Name

Local Authority Pension The Fund is a founding member of the Local Authority
Fund Forum (LAPFF) Pension Fund Forum (LAPFF) and the Fund’s Executive

Director of Pensions is currently LAPFF’s Honorary Treasurer.

LAPFF is the UK’s leading collaborative shareholder

engagement group encompassing 82 local authority

pension funds and seven investment pools from across
the country with combined assets of around £300 billion.

The Fund is an active participant in LAPFF’s engagement

programs.

Membership of LAPFF provides the Fund with:
independent research and advice on the Rl risks of
companies to inform further stakeholder engagement;
advice on the governance practices of companies; and
a forum to engage with companies to improve
governance practices.

Institutional Investors  The Fund is a member of the Institutional Investors Group

Group on Climate on Climate Change (IIGCC), which is an influential asset

Change (I1GCC) owner and asset manager membership body and the largest
one focusing specifically on climate change. IIGCC helps
define the investment practices, policies and corporate
behaviours required to address climate change.

Climate Action 100+ The Fund is a member of Climate Action 100+ - an
engagement collaboration of more than 700 investors with
a combined $68 trillion assets under management. CA100+
engages 166 companies on climate risk that are responsible
for 80% of global industrial greenhouse gas emissions.

Transition Pathway The TPl is a global, asset-owner led initiative which assesses

Initiative (TPI) companies' preparedness for the transition to a low carbon
economy. Rapidly becoming the go-to corporate climate
action benchmark. The Fund, via LGPS Central, supports the
TPI Global Climate Transition Centre, an independent
source of research and data into the progress being made
to transition to a low-carbon economy, created for the
global investor community and supported by collective

Ssotrn AUM.
Principles for PRI is the largest RI-related organisation globally, and helps
Responsible Investment with research, policy influence and collaborative
(PRI) engagement. The Fund has been as a signatory of the PRI

since 2010 and continue to annually assess the quality of
our RI activities against PRI’s requirements and assessments.

UK Stewardship The Fund is a signatory to the UK Stewardship Code 2020

Code 2020 which sets high stewardship standards for pension funds
including the annual assessment of our Annual Stewardship
Report.

Page 31



12

6 APPENDIX: GLOSSARY OF TERMS

ESG Factors

Environmental, social, and corporate governance factors which could impact company
performance and therefore investment returns. Examples include (but are not limited
to) climate change, workforce issues, remuneration, independence of the board and
auditors, board composition and diversity.

Ethical Investment
An approach seeking a moral or ethical return, potentially ahead of financial return.

Fund
West Midlands Pension Fund which incorporates the former employers of the West
Midlands Integrated Transport Authority Pension Fund following a merger of the Funds.

Governance

The process and principles by which a company or organisation undertakes its
business. For the Fund, governance includes how it undertakes both its operational
and investment responsibilities on behalf of its members.

Pensions Board
The role of the Pensions Board is to assist in the good governance of the scheme
through the monitoring of Fund performance and adherence to statutory duties.

The Pensions Board is not a decision-making body, nor does it hold a scrutiny function;
its role is to assist in the compliance with scheme rules. The Fund’s policies, including
the Investment Strategy Statement and the RI Framework, are reviewed annually by
the Pensions Board.

Pensions Committee

Body established by City of Wolverhampton Council (the administering authority)
in charge of the management of the administration of benefits and strategic
management of the Fund’s assets, which has representation from the seven West
Midlands metropolitan district councils and local trade unions.

Socially Responsible/Social Impact Investments
Investments that deliver social impact as well as a financial return are often described
as “social investments”.

The Fund considers opportunities in social investments alongside other opportunities
and will assess their relative merits on fundamental grounds and with reference to
suitability of fit for the Fund.

Responsible Investment

The integration of financially material environmental, social and corporate governance
(“ESG”) factors into investment processes both before and after the investment
decision.

Stewardship
We define the concept of stewardship the same as the Financial Reporting Council
(FRC), the organisation that oversees the UK Stewardship Code:

“Stewardship is the responsible allocation, management and oversight of capital to
create long-term value for clients and beneficiaries leading to sustainable benefits for
the economy, the environment and society. The UK Stewardship Code (2020) sets
high standard for asset owners and asset managers, and for service providers that
support them”.

Page 32

RESPONSIBLE INVESTMENT FRAMEWORK ¢ DECEMBER 2022



West Midlands Pension Fund
PO Box 3948
Wolverhampton

WV 1XP

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix C

Federated =

Mva ’q,
LGPS Central Limited
/ —

West Midlands Pension Fund

Hermes <
EOS

Engagement Report
Q3 2022

Engagement by region

We engaged with 180 companies held in the West Midlands Pension Fund portfolio on a range of 641 environmental, social and
governance issues and objectives

Global

We engaged with 180 companies

Il Environmental 38.5%

I Governance 17.5%

B Social and Ethical 29.0%
Strategy, Risk and Comm 15.0%

Australia & New Zealand

We engaged with three companies

Bl Environmental 20.0%
I Governance 20.0%
B Social and Ethical 46.7%
! Strategy, Risk and Comm 13.3%

Europe

Developed Asia

We engaged with 15 companies

Il Environmental 40.4%
[ Governance 27.7%
I Social and Ethical 12.8%
| Strategy, Risk and Comm 19.1%

Emerging & Developing Markets

We engaged with 20 companies

Il Environmental 37.5%
I Governance 17.9%
B Social and Ethical 25.0%
! Strategy, Risk and Comm 19.6%

We engaged with 46 companies

Il Environmental 41.5%

I Governance 11.7%

B Social and Ethical 27.1%
Strategy, Risk and Comm 19.7%

For professional investors only

North America

We engaged with 72 companies

Il Environmental 38.5%

I Governance 14.4%

I Social and Ethical 33.1%
Strategy, Risk and Comm 14.0%

United Kingdom

We engaged with 24 companies

Il Environmental 34.6%

I Governance 34.6%

B Social and Ethical 29.5%
Strategy, Risk and Comm 1.3%

Page 35

www.hermes-investment.com

EOS at Federated Hermes



Engagement Report West Midlands Pension Fund

Engagement by theme

We engaged with 180 companies held in the West Midlands Pension Fund portfolio on a range of 641 environmental, social and
governance issues and objectives

Environmental Social and Ethical Governance
Environmental topics featured in 38.5% of Social and Ethical topics featured in 29.0% Governance topics featured in 17.5% of our
our engagements of our engagements engagements

Il Climate Change 74.5% Il Bribery and Corruption 1.6% Board Diversity, Skills and
I Forestry and Land Use 5.7% B Conduct and Culture 9.7% Experience 33.0%
1 Pollution and Waste Management I Diversity 17.7% I Board Independence 16.1%
13.4% ___ Human Capital Management I Executive Remuneration 40.2%
| Supply Chain Management 2.4% TR 19.9% Shareholder Protection and
B Water 4.0% B Human Rights 44.6% " Rights 8.9%
I Labour Rights 4.8% I Succession Planning 1.8%
Bl Tax 1.6%

Strategy, Risk and Communication

Strategy, Risk and Communication topics
featured in 15.0% of our engagements

Il Audit and Accounting 6.3%
I Business Strategy 32.3%
[ Cyber Security 3.1%

Integrated Reporting and
Other Disclosure 26.0%

I Risk Management 32.3%

For professional investors only www.hermes-investment.com

Page 36



Appendix D |
Federated =

0
7
N2 Hermes <
LGPS Central Limited EOS
aat Voting Report, Q3 2022

Over the last quarter we made voting recommendations at 277 meetings (3,260 resolutions). At 120 meetings we recommended opposing one
or more resolutions. We recommended voting with management by exception at tenmeetings We supported management on all resolutions at
the remaining 147 meetings.

Global

We made voting recommendations at 277 meetings
(3,260resolutions) over the last quarter.

[l Total meetings in favour 53.1%
[ Meetings against (or against AND abstain) 43.3%
[ Meetings with management by exception 3.6%

Australia and New Zealand Developed Asia Emerging and Frontier Markets

We made voting recommendations at 14 meetings (69 ~ We made voting recommendations at 44meetings We made voting recommendations at 30 meetings (243
resolutions) over the last quarter. (326resolutions) over the last quarter. resolutions) over the last quarter.

[l Total meetings in favour 28.6% [l Total meetings in favour 50 % [l Total meetings in favour 46.7%

B Meetings against (or against AND abstain) 64.3% B Meetings against (or against AND abstain) 50 % [ Meetings against (or against AND abstain) 53.3%

[ Meetings with management by exception 7.1%

Europe North America United Kingdom
We made voting recommendations at 40 meetings We made voting recommendations at 3 3meetings We made voting recommendations at 116 meetings (1,719
(550resolutions) over the last quarter. (353resolutions) over the last quarter. resolutions) over the last quarter.
Bl Total meetings in favour 47.5% B Total meetings in favour 15.2% B Total meetings in favour 71.6%
B Meetings against (or against AND abstain) 50 % B Meetings against (or against AND abstain) 72.7% B Meetings against (or against AND abstain) 25 %
[ Meetings with management by exception 2.5% [ Meetings with management by exception 12.1% [ Meetings with management by exception 3.4 %
[ Y ~nN—
Page 37 :
www.hermes-investment.com

For professional investors only



Voting Report

West Midlands Pension Fund

The issues on which we recommended voting against management or abstaining on resolutions are shown below.

Global

We recommended voting against or abstaining on 342
resolutions over the last quarter.

[l Board structure 41.5%
B Remuneration 30.4%
[ shareholder resolution 7.6%
Capital structure and dividends 8.8 %
Il Amend articles 5.8%
1 Audit and accounts 2.6 %
[l Poison pill/Anti-takeover device 0.6%
Il Other2.6%

Australia and New Zealand

We recommended voting against or abstaining on 2 6
resolutions over the last quarter.

Developed Asia

We recommended voting against or abstaining on 4 2

resolutions over the last quarter.

Emerging and Frontier Markets

We recommended voting against or abstaining on 6 6
resolutions over the last quarter.

[l Board structure 50% [l Board structure 73.8% [l Board structure 48.5%
B Remuneration 50 % M Remuneration 9.5% B Remuneration 13.6%
[ Capital structure and dividends 9.5% [ Capital structure and dividends 27.3%
Amend articles 7.1% Amend articles 1.5%
M Audit and accounts 7.6%
[ Other 1.5%
Europe North America United Kingdom

We recommended voting against or abstainingon 9 8
resolutions over the last quarter.

[l Board structure 36.7%
B Remuneration 30.6%
[l Shareholder resolution 3.1%
Capital structure and dividends 8.2 %
B Amend articles 13.3%
M Audit and accounts 2.0%
[ Other 6.1%

We recommended voting against or abstainingon 6 6

resolutions over the last quarter.

[l Board structure 34.8%

B Remuneration 27.3%

[ shareholder resolution 33.3%
Amend articles 3.0%

M Auditand accounts 1.5%

Page 38

We recommended voting against or abstaining on 4 4
resolutions over the last quarter.

[l Board structure 15.9%
B Remuneration 68.2%
[ Shareholder resolution 2.3 %
Amend articles 2.3 %
M Audit and accounts 2.3 %
|1 Poison pill/Anti-takeover device 4.5%
W Other 4.5%

2022Q3VFS

For professional investors only

www.hermes-investment.com



This report is PUBLIC

CITY or
WOLVERHAMPTON
COUNCIL

nda Item NO: 6

Pensions Committee
14 December 2022

Report Title

Originating service

Accountable employee

Report to be/has been
considered by

Pensions Administration Report from
1 July to 30 September 2022

Pension Services

Amy Regler Head of Operations
Tel 01902 55 5976
Email Amy.Reqgler@wolverhampton.gov.uk

Rachel Brothwood  Exectuive Director of Pensions
Tel 01902 55 1715
Email Rachel.Brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk

Recommendations for decision:

The Pensions Committee is recommended to approve:

1. The 17 applications for admission from employers into the Fund as detailed in section 9 and
Appendix E of this report.

Recommendations for action:

The Pensions Committee is asked to note:

1. Performance and workloads of the key pension administration functions.

2. Development of the Fund’s membership and participating employers.

3. The outcomes of the Fund’s deferred overseas existence exercise.

Page 39


mailto:Amy.Regler@wolverhampton.gov.uk
mailto:Rachel.Brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk

1.0
1.1

2.0

2.1

3.0

3.1

3.1.1

This report is PUBLIC

Purpose

To inform the Pensions Committee of the routine operational work undertaken by the
Pensions Administration Service areas during the period 1 July — 30 September 2022.

Background

The Fund provides a pension administration service covering employer, customer and
member services, data processing, benefit operations, payroll and systems/technical
support. A report is provided to Pensions Committee on a quarterly basis to assist
monitoring of the activity and performance of these functions during that period.

Scheme Activity

Membership Movement — Main Fund

The total number of scheme member records in the Fund at 30 September 2022 stands at
340,528 with an overall increase since April 2022. The long-term trend over a 12 year period

in membership continues to illustrate a move towards a more mature profile whereby, in
general, pensioners and deferred memberships continue to rise.

Membership as at | Net Movements Membership as at
30 June 2022 during the period 30 September 2022
Active Members 111,328 -398 110,930
Deferred Members 115,567 394 115,961
Pensioner Members 112,343 1,294 113,637
Total Members 339,238 1,290 340,528
338,591 339,238 340,528
350,000 R 323795 333,934 335701
270,317 277,541 287,874 -
700,000 95998 104,045 106,898 111,268 112,343 1136
88,48 91,74 L
250,000 80,55 821 85,5
200,000
16 1 1 1 1 1 1
150,000
100,000
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

50,000

0

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 30 June 30-Sep-22
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2022

Pensioner Members

W Active Members H Depa@%ma_ﬂ



3.2

3.2.1

3.2.2

3.2.3

3.2.4

3.2.5

4.0

4.1

4.2

This report is PUBLIC

Workflow Statistics

The process analysis statistics in Appendix A show details of overall workflow within the
Pensions Administration Service during the period 1 July to 30 September 2022. During the
period covered by this report, 42,430 administrative processes were commenced, a slight
increase compared to the previous reporting period and 44,298 processes were completed,
which is ¢16% more than the previous reporting.

As we continue to see an increase in member movements, the workload volumes will also
naturally remain high. On 30 September 2022 there were 41,937 items of work outstanding.
This represents a decrease of 1,661 items outstanding compared to 30 June 2022 (43,958).
This decrease is mainly due to the focused work being undertaken to start targeting the
clearance of work in preparation for the change in pension administration software system.

Of the 41,937 items of work outstanding, 5,748 items were pending as a result of
information awaited from a third party e.g. scheme members, employers or transferring
authorities and 36,189 processes are now either proceeding to the next stage of the
process or through to final completion.

The Fund continues to review the volumes of incoming work and put plans in place to
monitor and address high volume areas. Opportunities for bulk processing and streamlining
the management of queries back to employers continue to be explored to increase
efficiency in processing.

Appendix B provides a summary of the key processes completed by volume across benefit
operational functions e.g. calculating benefits for retirements, pensioner member data
changes as well as the maintenance of updating membership details. This shows the trend
of lower joiners and higher leavers and retirements year to date is consistent with the tail off
in growth of membership and increase in deferred and pensioner membership. In addition,
the Fund continues to monitor the level of members opting out of the scheme which remain
at a low level. Overall the last six months have seen an increase in processing across a
number of key areas, indicating another year on year increase.

Key Performance Indicators (KPls)

The Fund uses a number of KPIs to measure performance when processing items such as
Transfers In and Out, Retirements and Deferred Retirements.

During the period, four KPI's did not achieve target on one occasion each during the period,
as follows:
e Active Retirement Quote — September 2022
o The KPI fell slightly short of the 90% target, achieving 89%, which was due
to waiting upon information from employers. The KPI is cumulatively
achieving 90% year to date.
e Deferred Retirement Quote — July 2022
o The KPI achieved 78% against the target of 90%. The team completed
25% more payment casework during the period impacting this KPI.
e Deferred Retirements — payment of lump sum and creation of payroll record —
August 2022

Page 41



4.3

5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

54

6.0

6.1

6.2

This report is PUBLIC

o The KPI fell short of the target, achieving 88% for the period, on average
casework was completed within 4 days against the target of 5. The KPl is
cumulatively achieving 90% year to date.

e Transfer in — Notifcation of transferred membersip — July 2022

o 2 cases failed KPl meaning 75% achievement of KPI, due to a third party

delay in both cases.

Further information on achievement of target KPIs by process by month over the reporting
period and Scheme year is included in Appendix C.

Customer Services

An overview of our front-line customer contact activity is shown in Appendix D. This outlines
the variety and volume of support provided by the Fund to address members’ pension
queries. An indication of the statistics for the previous year are included within the charts as
a comparative measure.

The most popular queries to our contact centre remain as follows:

o Customers following up on an existing Fund process

o Requests for Pensions Portal support

« Enquires about accessing pension benefits

o Request for support with a Fund letter/form

o Members updating their personal details
There are a number of employees who are new to their role on the Customer Services team
and training and knowledge on the team has been a priority over the quarter, to increase
capacity. To further support ongoing employee development and customer services, a
“‘Knowledge Hub” has been developed for easy access to scheme information and member
support material.

Calls have remained stable throughout the quarter and written query volumes have been
lower than anticipated, allowing the team to focus on training. As a result, more employees
are handling a more varied range of queries and the team is already seeing an improved call
handling rate and reduced wait times in both written queries and calls. We have continued to
work closely with Member Services to stagger mailings sent to members, with annual benefit
statements being sent within this period. Staggering mailings smooths the impact on the
contact centre and reduces call queues/written response times, allowing us to better serve
our customers and reduce the number of chaser requests received.

Complaints

The Fund has a complaint monitoring framework, which enables regular monitoring and
review of trends impacting performance. Where a complaint highlights an improvement
area, this is investigated and monitored to help shape future services and improve overall
customer satisfaction going forward. This mirrors the process undertaken for general
customer feedback as outlined within the Customer Engagement Update.

Complaint numbers were lower than average during the last quarter. Overall, the number of
complaints received by the Fund is proportionally low compared to the number of scheme
members, with 33 complaints received for the last quarter. Of those complaints, 49% were
upheld and lessons learned incorporlgted in Eﬁining and process development.

age



7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

8.2

This report is PUBLIC
Internal Dispute Resolution Procedure (IDRP) Casework

Year to date for 2022/2023, two cases have been referred to Stage 1 which were not
upheld. Seven cases have been referred to Stage 2 of the procedure on appeal against the
Fund, five of which have not been upheld and two currently under investigation.

Employer Membership

During the period, the Fund has seen an increase in employer numbers, with the overall
number of employers registered with the Fund increasing to 802 at 30 September 2022.
Overall there has been a 92% increase since March 2014 as shown in the graph below,
however, the 2022/23 year to date increase has been lower than previous years, and it is
anticipated that a more moderate increase will be observed over this year.

900

800
70
60
50
40 672
20 612 N6
| 173 B
20
10
S N0 < S IS O A

| No. of employers

o O O O O o o o

The employer base is categorised into the following employer types:

600
500
400
300
200

Scheduled body (inc. Admitted bodies Academy
district councils,
parish councils,

Universities, colleges)

Page 43



8.3

9.0

9.1

9.2

10.0

10.1

10.2

10.3

11.0

11.1

This report is PUBLIC

The level of on-going work being processed at the end of the period is as follows: -

. 59 admission agreements
. 11 academies
. 65 employer terminations

Application for Admission Body Status

Organisations must satisfy one or more of the admission criteria before they can be
admitted to the Fund following approval of applications. Where applications need to be
progressed outside of the Committee meeting cycle, Pensions Committee has delegated
responsibility for approving such applications to the Executive Director of Pensions in
consultation with the Chair or Vice Chair of Pensions Committee.

There are 17 approvals requested from Committee in regard to applications for admission
to the West Midlands Pension Fund, these are detailed in Appendix E.

Pensions in Payment
The gross annual value of pensions in payment to September 2022 was £579.6m, £15.8m
of which (£8.7m for pensions increase and £7.1m for added year’s compensation) was

recovered from employing authorities and other bodies as the expenditure was incurred.

Monthly payroll details were:

Month Number Value (£)

July 2022 91,764 42,460,414
August 2022 92,045 42,608,024
September 2022 103,249 43,598,308

The September figure includes pensioners paid on a quarterly basis.

Pensions are increased each April, in line with the Consumer Price Index (CPI), with uplift
calculation based on September CPI in the previous year. An increase rate in excess of
10% is expected to be applied from April 2023 (and will be confirmed when the treasury
order is released, which is usually in late January/early February), following rising inflation
over the last year.

Transfer Out - all casework
A total of 213 individual transfer payments were made during the period 1 July 2022 to 30

September 2022, resulting in a total amount transferred of £9,449,210. This is broken down
into the following categories:

Page 44



This report is PUBLIC

Type of transfer

Number of transfer

Value of Transfer

payments Payments (£000s)
Non LGPS 33 £1,285,971
Interfund (LGPS fund) 171 £7,950,746
Additional Voluntary 9 £212,494

Contributions

11.2 Non LGPS Transfers

11.2.1 During the period 1 July 2022 to 30 September 2022, 418 transfer value quotations were
issued to members considering transferring their benefits out of the scheme (in the prior
year 1 July 2021 to 30 September 2021, 426 transfer value quotations were issued to
members). The Fund continues to monitor any trends and increases in demands, as part of
its programme of work to protect members from potential pension scams.

11.2.2In total, 33 transfer payments were made during the period 1 July 2022 to 30 September
2022 (15 of these were to non public sector schemes) resulting in a total amount transferred
of £1,285,971 (in the prior year 1 July 2021 to 30 September 2021 a total of 42 transfer
payments were made totalling £3,978,188). The payments by volume and value break

down are as follows:

Value of Number of Transfer Payments
Transfer Other Public Non Public sector
Payments Sector Scheme [scheme

0 to £30,000 17 13

£30,001 to 1 0

£100,000

£100,001 to 0 0

£200,000

£200,001 to 0 1

£300,000

£300,001 to 0 0

£400,000

£400,001 to 0 0

£500,000

Above £500,001 [0 1

Total 18 15

11.2.3 The Fund has seen a gradual increase in the number of requests from members for transfer
out quotes, however the number of members electing to progress with the transfer of their
benefits out of the Fund remains fairly low and stable (c11% of the quotations requested

year to date). This is shown in the graph below:

Page 45




This report is PUBLIC

Transfer Out - Quotes vs Payments (Year

on Year)
450 16.00%
400 13.66% 14.00%
350 12.00%
300 9.39% 10.00%
250 .89%
8.00%
200
6.00%
150
100 4.00%
50 2.00%
; 1 [ ] ] 0.00%
July - Sept 2020 July - Sept 2021 July - Sept 2022
mmmm Quotes NN Payments % Paid vs Quoted

11.2.4 Analysis has been undertaken of the Transfer out payments to non-public sector or
occupational schemes over the period of July to September 2022 to review the volume
and trends. During the period, of the 33 completed, a total of 15 non-public sector or
occupational scheme transfer out payments have been processed, to a total of 8 different
receiving schemes. There were 12 transfers under £30,000 in value, meaning members
were able to transfer these payments without a requirement to take financial advice. The
average age of members transferring out was 51 years with the main reasons for
members transferring out was either to consolidate their benefits into one provider or
release cash/flexible draw down (members over 55).

12.0 Deferred Member Overseas Existence Exercise

12.1 The Fund has in the region of 700 overseas deferred members. Overseas members cannot
be traced using the same trace tools as those living in the UK, as the data sets typically
used will not show information for an overseas person, even if that person is still a UK
national. To ensure we maintain contact and up to date records, the Fund undertakes an
annual Life Certification Process for overseas deferred members, writing out to confirm
existence and their contact information.

12.2 The Fund engage with their tracing and member verification service provider, Target
Professional Services, to utilise their digital services for our overseas members. This
enables members to undertake the process via traditional postal methods or via the
mypensionID app.

12.3 This is the first year the Fund has undertaken this exercise and has seen a positive
response rate. The Fund received a 60% verification success rate, given the members are
deferred and have less of an incentive than pensioners to respond, this success rate is
higher than expected. For those who haven’t responded, the Fund will review each case
looking at the most recent engagement with the member and will undertake follow up work
with the provider if applicable. Of these successful results, there is a general trend towards
electronic means of confirmation beipga_r@@rq@pular for this exercise, with 57% of



13.0

13.1

13.2

14.0

141

15.0

15.1

16.0

16.1

17.0

171

18.0

18.1

18.2

18.3

18.4

18.5

This report is PUBLIC

members utilising the digital app across 10 different countries. The average age of
respondents being 53, with the oldest responder via the app being 68. In addition, a further
31% indicating broad member interest in engaging with the Fund electronically. As part of
this exercise the Fund has been able to gather 414 new/updated email addresses and has
identified 1 deceased member enabling the processing of any death benefits.

Financial Implications

The report contains financial information which should be noted.

Employees of organisations who become members of the LGPS will contribute the
percentage of their pensionable pay as specified in the Regulations.

Legal Implications

The Fund, on behalf of the City of Wolverhampton Council will enter into a legally binding
contract with organisations applying to join the LGPS under an admission agreement.

Equalities Implications

There are no direct equalities implications.
All Other Implications

There are no other potential implications.
Schedule of Background Papers

None.

Schedule of Appendices

Appendix A: Workflow Summary
Appendix B: Detailed Process Analysis
Appendix C: Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)
Appendix D: Customer Service Statistics

Appendix E: Admitted Body Applications

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



_owuw_o_EOU $955320.d m pa1Jels Sassa30.4d m

720z J3qwiandas og 7zoz snsny Tg zeoz Ainr te ccoeLunroge zzoz Aen 1€ 720z 1udy 0g

000¢
000
0009
0008
0000T
000¢T
00oovT
0009T

pa13|dwo) $3s53204d SA PalJelS SISSAT0.J |BI0L

Page 49

Vv Xipuaddy

31014153y :AuAnisuas



This page is intentionally left blank



ov¥'LLS [6vC'col S¥0'c6 |v9.°L6  |L0z'colL Jece'le [eS6°06 |ezv'sol’L [e6v6'c60°L |[S62°6L0°)L |618°6.6 |961°Gv6 [SL2GL6 |vS6°888 [v98°CL6 pled Jaquinu [enjoy
l104Aed

6891 (374 6€C 6L€ €0€ Sie cle 9¢ee 988¢€ 0592 €612 6162 €18C 2oLl 12144 sJauoisuad jo syreaq
186 08l SoL €91 oel 961 €Sl 1502 6€SL v/81 1961 14544 Tl €.5°) 182 ueg jo sabueyd
9291 Le 602 0S¢ 122 (444 VAI4 988¢ 1474 g€eve 829¢ ¥00€ 685°C 1€2°C €€L') SsaIppy Jo sabueyd
rA%0]% Ll €8l 6¢l G/l 881 Gl 1S¥¢2 1921 €961 ¥69¢ SoLe L2v'e 8vS'y ¥09°'C sIaquinN |N ‘spiomssed Do ejeq
-1S80UBISWN2IID Ul sabuey)

adA} ssaosoud

—

siaquiaw JauoisuadL()

(O]

(@)
G999 096 716 0961 6811 S06 €9 8608 1788 829L1 suojjeweblewy
9.¢ [45 19 8. GG 18 /G 8ccl 8ccl G8G¢e SinQ 1}dO
Zlie 6€S 1S 119 Z8S 1454 (51474 9€0S 667 1189 punjsy
122 ve v 8¢ L€ 4] 0€ 414 0.5 (3474 144 0Ly 66¢ 6.€ 0€C slaquisw jo syjesQ
208¢ 17A4 6.1 (51474 Ley 98Yy €61 108G 144514 1209 14514 6211 2ss'e Ler'e 10€C Sjuswialijey pasisjeq
9eel 9ce Zse YAZ4 €Ll 1€2 L0¢ 861l¢ 8061 clie 08¢¢ 9192 €65°C GLL'C 1GeC (syustwainal JeAojdwg) sjuswaINSY SANOY|
Zsl9 196 2€6 0Ll GGl 80l 96 05601 Yvv6 6611 €651 6298 8/1'8 ove's ¥99°'G sjuswsad
geve Lvy YX44 99% 0cy 99¢ 662 [A72°14 1919 8599 G2lS 98€S 0.€'9 2SL'8 16€°9 sinoy ui ebueyo bHs seouejswnad ul sebueyd
8006 G88l 8G¢l [AYA* 8911 (1%4" €L €e99L 6.¥.LL 6661 6065¢ GG/l |lzz'oc [8899L |9L86 (Ming) siauioley pue sisuiop
adA} ssaosoud
slaquiaw palidjaq B oAy

alaA Jaquisydag | 3snbny Anp aunp Repy 1udy zz/ieoe 1z/0z0e 0z/6102 61/81L0C | 8L/LLOC | LL/9L0Z | 9L/SLOZ | SLivLiOZ

g xipuaddy

SIsAjeuy sseooid peo|iejadq

g xipuaddy Hodoay [BoNISNE}S aopIllio) uoisuag



This page is intentionally left blank



: RESTRICTED

Sensitivity

Appendix C

KPI

100

90

HApr-22 EMay-22 MWJun-22 MJul-22 EAug-22 MSep-22



This page is intentionally left blank



Sensitivity: PROTECT

Appendix D: Customer Services Statistics
July - September 2022

Incoming Calls

7000 S~ o
6000 1
5000
4000
3000
2000
1000
o
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Ju Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
m— Calls Offered 2022 wmmm Calls Answered 2022 —— Calls Offered 2021
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
Calls Offered 2022 7560 6432 6217 6647 7338
Calls Answered 2022 6171 5419 5166 5743 6414
Calls Offered 2021 6299 7114 6643 6063 7968
Answer Rate (Target 85%) 81.63%| 84.25% 83.09%| 86.40% | 87.41%

dix D: C Services

Jan

Written Enquiries

Feb Mar Apr May Jun  Jul  Aug

— Queries Received 2022

sep

ot Nov

———CQueries Received 2021

Dec

Jan Feb Mar Apr Ma Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
Queries Received 2022 2597]  2731] 2754 2761] 2741 2665] 2460 1860 1807
Queries Received 2021 2053]  3217] 3541] 2021| 2406 3043] 2502] 2209] 2980

dix D: C Services

Reception

Visitors

SN~

Apr May Jun  Jul  Aug  Sep  Oct

Jn b Mar Nov  Dec
—Visitors in 2022 ——Viitors in 2019*
Jan Feb Mar Apr Ma Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
Visitors in 2022 0 0 0 50 94 138 [144 o7 [140 [ [ [ |
Visitors in 2019* 393|307 [364 288 [250  [303 |268  |252  |287  [294 [315  |243 |

“pre COVID

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix E Application for admission body status

Employer name Guarantee Status No. of employees Status
(Agreement) (Scheme members) (Approved/pending
Agreement type approval)
Our Learning Cloud Ltd The Mercian Trust 5 Pending approval
(The Mercian Trust) (5)
Closed
ABM Catering Ltd (Rednal Birmingham CC 4 Pending approval
Hill J&I Schools) (4)
Closed
Compass Contract Victoria Academies 4 Pending approval
Services Trust (5)
(Victoria Academies Closed
Trust)
Caterlink Ltd (S4S Cluster) Wolverhampton 4 Pending approval
cC 4)
Closed
Atalian Servest Food Co Holy Cross MAC 7 Pending approval
Ltd (Holy Cross MAC) (7)
Closed
Dodd Group (Midlands) Birmingham CC 4 Pending approval
Ltd (Birmingham CC) (4)
Closed
Aspens Services Ltd Central RSA 5 Pending approval
(Central RSA) (13)
Closed
Miquill Catering Ltd Ryder Hayes 1 Pending approval
(Ryder Hayes Academy) Academy Trust (1)
Closed
Barnados (Sandwell MBC) Sandwell MBC 6 Pending approval
(6)
Closed
Caterlink Ltd (Summit Summit Learning 12 Pending approval
Learning Trust) Trust (12)
Closed
Caterlink Ltd (St Martin's St Martin's MAT 6 Pending approval
MAT) (6)
Closed

Page 57




Coombs Catering Birmingham CC 2 Pending approval
Partnership Ltd (Uffculme (2)
SChOO|) C|osed
Atalian Servest Food Co Inspire Education 1 Pending approval
Ltd (Inspire Education Trust (4)
Trust) Closed
Vertas Group Ltd (ATT Academy 15 Pending approval
Schools) Transformation (15)
Trust Closed
Sips Education Limited Birmingham CC 3 Pending approval
(Water Mill Primary 3)
SChOOl) Open
Vertas Group Ltd Ormiston 5 Pending approval
(Ormiston Shelfield Academies Trust (6)
Community Academy) Closed
ECO Clean and Coventry CC 1 Pending approval
Maintenance Ltd (1)
(Earlsdon Primary School) Closed

There was 1 approval approved by the Chair during the period in regard to an

application for admission to the West Midlands Pension Fund.

Miquill Catering Ltd (Blue
Coat CE Academy)

Blue Coat CE
Academy

3

(3)
Closed

Approved

Page 58




This report is PUBLIC

wopse  Pensions Committee
COUNCIL 14 December 2022

Report Title Customer Engagement Update
Originating service Pension Services
Accountable employee Simon Taylor Assistant Director (Pensions)

Tel 01902 554276

Email Simon.taylor2@wolverhampton.gov.uk
Report to be/has been Rachel Brothwood Executive Director of Pensions
considered by Tel 01902 551715

Email Rachel.brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk

Recommendations for noting:
The Pensions Committee is asked to note:

1. The engagement activity and informed service development.

Page 59


mailto:Simon.taylor2@wolverhampton.gov.uk
mailto:Rachel.brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk

1.0

1.1

2.0

2.1

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

This report is PUBLIC
Purpose

To provide Committee with an update of the Fund’s customer engagement activity from
1st July 2022 to 30" September 2022 and to cover future planned customer engagement
activity in the context of the Fund’s Customer Engagement Strategy.

Background

One of the Fund’s key objectives is to engage to improve outcomes for our customers. In
line with this objective, the Fund has published, and keeps under review, a Customer
Engagement Strategy, to review satisfaction and help inform improvements to its pension
services.

Member Engagement & Communication

The Member Services Team continues to deliver member support via hybrid channels
including member webinars, face to face presentation and followed up with individual
consultations as required. During this reporting period 1,209 members attended our
presentations, webinars and workshops. These were followed by 315 individual member
consultations. Our events are delivered at various times throughout the day to
accommodate attendance around member and work commitments. This delivery and the
associated feedback are summarised in Appendix A.

During this reporting period the Member Services Team targeted leisure centres and LEA
schools and provided 13 satellite support events to 150 hard to reach members. These
are members who may not normally be able to access our services due to the nature of
their work and location, which might include access to web-based delivery (i.e. computer
facilities), working hours or ‘satellite’ locations.

Through the “Be Pension Smart & Take Control of Your Benefits” campaign the Fund
continues to encourage members to view and manage their pension record online using
the pensions portal. During this reporting period registrations increased by 2,621,
bringing the total pension portal registrations to 124,297 at the end of September 2022.

The Fund continues to promote aspects of our work via the social media platform
LinkedIn. Since the last reporting period a further 7,685 people have interacted with our
variety of articles from sharing award success, pension awareness campaign, promoting
Annual Benefits Statements and advertising our Pension Roadshow events. Over this
reporting period we have seen an additional 5,399 views when compared to the previous
reporting period.

The West Midland Pension Fund roadshow bus is now back on the road, providing face
to face support across the region. The focus from July to September was providing
roadshow support to schools and academies. 8 roadshow events were delivered which
provided 379 members with face to face pension support on the bus. Feedback from
these events was 85% rated the events as excellent and 15% rated them as very good.

Page 60


https://portal2.wmpfonline.com/
https://www.linkedin.com/company/west-midlands-pension-fund

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

4.0

41

411

This report is PUBLIC

“Planning your retirement” workshops are still proving to be popular with members who
are over the age of 55. In this quarter the Member Services Team delivered 8 workshops
to active members which helped 136 attendees with their retirement planning.

The Fund continues to target active and deferred members who do not hold a valid
nomination form through our nomination form campaign, the focus over this period was
contacting members who work in the education sector, targeting multi-academy trusts.

Annually, the Fund aims to produce as many Annual Benefits Statements as possible,
this year the Fund has produced 90,074 active statements, and this was followed up with
58,000 emails and 23,000 text messages to members, where we hold a valid email
address and mobile number, to notify members that their statement is available on the
portal.

In line with Pension Awareness week, the Fund designed a pension awareness
campaign bespoke to the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). This was a bulk
email which signposted a host of events from webinars, workshops, our roadshow events
and notifying members that their Annual Statement is available online. 131,125 emails
were sent to our active and deferred members offering different support depending on
their membership category.

Following changes to regulations (“Stronger Nudge to pensions guidance”) in regard to
members who are, or who have previously paid Additional Voluntary Contributions
(AVCs), in August 2022 the Fund wrote to 2,703 members to disclose these changes and
explain the guidance that they will be required to take from Pension Wise in regard to the
options available to them when claiming their AVC.

Website content continues to be updated and there have been 323,000 web page views
in this quarter.

Customer feedback is key to understanding our customer’s journey, highlighting our
strengths and any gaps in the service we deliver so that we can continually improve the
services we offer. Following a review of our ‘Post Event’ surveys to scheme members
and the creation of a customer feedback dashboard, post-event surveys are now being
issued to members regularly. The overall customer feedback Key Performance Indicator
(KPI) for this quarter is 89%.

Employer Engagement

Employer Peer Group

The second session of the Funds Employer Peer Group cycle for 2022/23 took place in
September with 13 out of the 18 registered employer representatives present. The

content for the meeting included:

e Transition to the new Pension Administration System (PAS) — update on testing
progress and request for employer assistance.

Page 61



4.2

421

422

423

4.3

4.3.1

43.2

This report is PUBLIC

e The 2022 Actuarial Valuation — road-testing planned engagement and supporting
information.

e New Fund website demonstration and discussion.

e Employer Best Practice discussions — employer attendee led.

e Technical Q&A session.

Employer Webinars

The Employer Services Team has continued to deliver a programme of employer
education over the quarter with a further 11 virtual sessions delivered to 71 attendees
representing 34 organisations. The sessions are free to attend and provide a useful
refresher for existing staff or as an introduction to processes for those who are new to
Fund administration.

Sessions delivered over the quarter are set out below and will continue to be rolled out
over the course of the year. An increased suite of webinars is now available each month
and employers are able to easily sign-up for these via the Fund’s website.

e Understanding your Accounting Disclosure (FRS102) Report

e Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) (TUPESs), Tenders & Pass-
through Admission Agreements

Understanding Pay and Service in the LGPS

Assumed Pensionable Pay

WMPF Retirements and Notification

Producing Estimates in Employer Hub

Estimates and Early Retirement Costs

All About lll-health Retirement

Submission of your Monthly Data File

The Pensions Administration Strategy: your role and responsibilities

A full suite of webinars specific to the roll out of the new PAS and Employer Self Service
functionality will become available in the coming months. Additionally, plans have been
made to re-commence face to face coaching sessions at i9 within the next quarter.

Employer Engagement and Performance

Utilising the virtual working arrangements currently in place, the Employer Services Team
have continued to hold performance meetings with various employers throughout the
period. Employer performance is assessed in line with the Fund’s Pension Administration
Strategy (PAS).

During the period the Fund held 23 feedback and performance meetings with 15
organisations and 2 third-party payroll providers (note some employers were met with on
multiple occasions during the period). Collectively these employers and payroll service
providers are responsible for submitting for 125 organisations, servicing over 14,000
members.

Page 62



4.3.3

43.4

4.3.5

44

441

442

443

5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

This report is PUBLIC

The continued employer engagement, in collaboration with colleagues from the Fund’s
finance, data and operation teams, ensures data positions are reviewed and cleansed for
accuracy. Ahead of the move to the new software provider from next April, the Fund’s
employer and data teams are working closely to target the resolution of historic data
queries to aid a smoother transition. Additional engagement is also underway with
employers where Annual Benefit Statement production rates could be improved.

The results of the 2022 Employer Health Check have now been reviewed and processed.
In total 244 individual responses were received covering 484 employers and over 85,000
scheme members, representing close to 80% of the membership in scope.

The responses from the check confirmed an additional 883 members had left, but where
the Fund had not been notified by the employer, 875 contact changes were made to
employer records, and 17 Employer Hub users had access revoked.

McCloud: Employer Support

The Employer Services Team continues to offer targeted 1:1 meetings to help employers
meet the McCloud data collation and submission requirements. During the period, 31
meetings were held, reaching across 59 employers who had to date not submitted the
required data. Over the same period an additional 22 files were fully completed and
submitted covering over 1,500 members.

In addition, email and telephone support continues to be offered to employers with a
target date for submission of the end of November 2022.

An advisory note has now been issued to 91 organisations (representing 1.5% of the
total membership) who have been unresponsive to the Fund’s communications regarding
McCloud, aligned to the Fund’s Escalation Policy. The note clearly sets out the
implications of non-compliance, with particular reference to the potential impact on
member benefits.

Future Engagement

As part of the Fund'’s hard to reach project to target members who may not normally be

able to access our services due to the nature of their work and location, from October to
December 2022 the Member Services Team will be focusing on targeting members who
work in Adult Services, libraries and parish councils.

Each autumn the Fund provides deferred and active members with a newsletter which
covers a variety of updates across the Fund, various important member information and
covers topical issues in the LGPS. In October 59,499 Deferred Pension Smart
newsletters were sent out via email followed by 71,716 Active Pension Smart newsletters
which were emailed out in November.

The Pension Roadshow vehicle was back out delivering roadshow events at the 7 district

locations across the West Midlands throughout October and November. Each location
has seen over 100 members attend with pension queries. Due to the high footfall, plans

Page 63



5.4

5.5

5.6

6.0

6.1

7.0
7.1
8.0
8.1
9.0

9.1

This report is PUBLIC

are being made to increase the amount of district roadshow events to provide members
with more opportunities to attend. We are also anticipating a higher footfall next year
following changes to the member Annual Benefit Statements as a result of the PAS
transition. We will continue to review attendance of these events and alternative ways of
engaging with our members around these statements.

A total of 352 Pension Saving Statements were sent to members ahead of the 5 October
2022 statutory deadline, where Fund records indicate their savings had exceeded the
annual allowance threshold and may be liable for additional tax charges. The Member
Services Team followed up on issue of these statements by offering the chance to book
on 7 Pension Tax webinars which 131 members registered for.

The Fund’s first face to face Pensioner Engagement Forum since the pandemic took
place on the 7 October 2022. This forum was designed for pensioner members to
provide their feedback and thoughts to enhance a member’s retirement journey in the
future. A guest speaker from the Alzheimer’s Society attended to talk about the support
and information which is available through their organisation. The group reviewed the
feedback from the “Tea & Teach” sessions which was delivered in summer 2022,
reviewed the newsletter and pensioner member communications and also provided
feedback on the Fund’s new website and new pensions portal which will be launched
early next year. The feedback and actions from this event will be published in the “You
said, we did” part of the 2023 pensioner newsletter.

Noting the importance of cleansing data, the Fund will be writing out to members shortly
who we believe may have changed their email address. We will be asking them to
update it on the Pensions Portal.

Large Fund Events

At time of writing, preparations are underway to plan for the Funds Annual General
Meeting (AGM) on the 6 December 2022. The event will cover a variety of important
update for employers and two workshops.

Financial Implications

There are no financial implications associated with this report.

Legal Implications

There are no legal implications associated with this report.

Equalities Implications

The report contains no direct equalities implications.

10.0 Environmental Implications

10.1

The report contains no direct environmental implications.

Page 64



11.0

12.0

121

13.0

13.1

14.0

141

This report is PUBLIC

Human Resources Implications

This report contains no direct human resources implications.
Corporate Landlord Implications

The report contains no direct corporate landlord implications.
Schedule of Background Papers

There are no background papers within this report.
Schedule of Appendices

Appendix A - Summary feedback from member presentations and individual
consultations

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



H West Midlands Pension Fund

Appendix A: Member Service Team Presentation Feedback - 1%t July 2022- 30t" September 2022

Event Rating

9 9%

45 [46%)
47 [455%:)

T

Q
«Q

D

(@)) @ Good @ Excellent @ Satisfactony

\l

Interaction Rating
1 {1%) —
47 [45%)
46 (44%)

ey satisfied @ Satisfied @ Neither satisfisd nor dissstisfisd

Presenter Rating

3 [3%)

8 (563%)

@ Ezcellent @ Good @ Satisfactory

Service Rating
12 (12%)

4R (45%)

dd (42%)

B Salisfied @\ery satisfied @ Meither satisfied nor dissatisfied



4

..

s West Midlands Pension Fund
3

T
Q
«Q
@
(@)
(0 0]
6 (22

Member Service Team Feedback - 1* July 2022 — 30" September 2022

Event Rating

@®Excellent @ Good @ Satisfactory

Interaction Rating

1{4%)

Individual Pension Consultations

7 (26%)

Presenter Rating

1(4%)

2(f%)

@ Excellent @ Good @ Satisfactory

24 (B9%)

Service Rating

21U
L

b



This report is PUBLIC

Agenda Item No: 8

wovir o on | Pensions Committee
COUNCIL 14 December 2022

Report title Compliance and Assurance
Originating service Pension Services
Accountable employee Rachel Howe Head of Governance, Risk and Assurance
Tel 01902 55 2091
Email Rachel.Howe@wolverhampton.gov.uk
Report to be/has been Rachel Brothwood Executive Director of Pensions
considered by Tel 01902 55 1715
Email Rachel.Brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk

Recommendations for noting:
The Pensions Committee is asked to note:

1. The latest Strategic Risk Register and areas being closely monitored in the current
environment.

2. The Fund’s Key Performance Indicators (KPI) and action taken to support service

delivery.

The compliance monitoring activity undertaken during the quarter.

The Fund’s Annual Report and Accounts which have been published on the Fund’s

website in accordance with the statutory deadline of 1 December 2022.

W

Page 69


mailto:Rachel.Howe@wolverhampton.gov.uk
mailto:Rachel.Brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk

1.0

1.1

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

This report is PUBLIC

Purpose

To provide Committee with an update on the work of the Fund to deliver a well governed
scheme.

Risk Register

Attached at Appendix A is the Strategic Risk Register for this quarter, which is showing
movement in the focus of risks for the organisation.

The Risk Register captures the potential for impact in the Fund’s service delivery as a
forward-looking review, together with horizon scanning for changes which may impact or
require change to the Fund’s processes and delivery model. As such the risks are
refreshed each quarter. This quarter, there are changes to the areas of focus and the
directional arrows therefore reflect the trend on the risk assessment (as opposed to
quarter-by-quarter comparison).

This quarter, we continue to anticipate the potential impact created by the current
economic environment. While there are no early signs of changing member behaviour,
we continue to see volatility in the investment market together with emerging pressures
and uncertainty on employer finances. The Fund remains focused on long-term initiatives
that it has control over, which will drive value and ensure it is well positioned to manage
both services and payments to its members.

This trend follows through in the next risk theme. The Fund is still awaiting the publication
of a number of regulatory guidance with the ongoing increasing complexity in the
scheme, all of which are external drivers over which the Fund has little control. The ability
of the Fund to keep pace with change and deliver Business as Usual has the potential to
result in conflicting priorities where technical and specialist knowledge and capabilities
are being used to support across a number of deliverables. These changes will lead to a
review of internal controls, the development of which will continue beyond the
implementation of planned development and change.

In line with all risks identified, the Fund continues to engage with external regulatory
bodies and feed into consultations which shape outcomes for the Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS) and wider pensions industry.

Key Performance Indicators

Attached at Appendix B are the Fund’s KPIs as at quarter one.

Further details with regards to the Fund’s Operational KPlIs is covered in the Pension
Administration Report. The team continues to flex resource to meet demands.

Engagement with the Fund from our customer base continues to be high, this is
demonstrated by the high volume of communications (calls and emails) received into the

Page 70



4.0

41

411

41.2

4.2

4.21

4.3

4.3.1

43.2

5.0

5.1

5.2

This report is PUBLIC

Fund’s contact centre, which alongside capacity constraints, have impacted the Fund’s
ability to meet KPlIs in responding to those customer contacts.

Compliance Monitoring
Data Protection

This quarter the Fund are reporting seven data breaches, an increase of two from the
previous quarter, as per previous quarters all breaches continue to be minor and involved
minimal amounts of low-risk data.

The Governance Team continue to monitor breaches and identify actions to improve
controls. The Fund hasn’t identified any systemic issues in the management of its data
and continues to work with service areas to implement ongoing enhancements in
systems and individual knowledge. Information management training has been
scheduled for January 2023 for all Fund staff to remind employees of their
responsibilities with regards to the handling and security of personal data.

Freedom of Information (FOI) Requests

The Fund received two FOI requests during the quarter, both relating to investment
holdings. Both requests were responded to in accordance with the set deadlines.

Subject Access Requests (SARs)

The number of SAR requests received continued to increase steadily during the quarter,
with five requests received in total. As reported previously, the majority of these requests
continue to be from third parties seeking information in connection with a member’s
decision to transfer their pension out of the LGPS. Authority from the member is always
sought prior to providing information to third parties. All requests were responded to in
accordance with the set deadlines.

The Fund has previously reported on the work we are doing in line with the Pension
Regulator’s Pension Scam Awareness campaign and ensures all members are kept
informed of any personal information requests regarding their data.

Annual Report and Accounts

In accordance with the statutory deadline of 1 December 2022, the Fund’s Annual Report
and Accounts have been placed on the Fund’s website, a link to which is included within
the background papers of this report.

As well as being published in the Fund’'s own Annual Report, the Fund’s accounts are
included in the Statement of Accounts of the City of Wolverhampton Council (CWC). The
Fund’s accounts will be certified by the external auditor, Grant Thornton, at the same
time as CWC'’s accounts. As previously reported to the Committee and discussed at the
meeting of CWC'’s Audit and Risk Committee on 28 November 2022, the sign-off of

Page 71



6.0

6.1

6.2

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

10.0

10.1

10.2

11.0

11.2

This report is PUBLIC

CWC’s annual accounts has been delayed pending the introduction of a Statuary
Instrument in respect of infrastructure assets which is due to take effect on 25 December
2022. This is a national issue outside of the Fund’s control, it should be noted that the
audit of The Fund’s accounts has been completed and the external auditor has indicated
that an unmodified audit opinion will be issued, a note to this effect has been published
on the Fund’s website alongside the Annual Report pending receipt of the formal audit
opinion upon the sign-off of CWC’s accounts.

Financial Implications

Effective monitoring of the management arrangements, facilitated by timely disclosure of
information, is required to ensure the Fund is well placed to ensure the delivery of its
administration, funding and investment strategy. Poor management of the Fund’s data,
financial information and assets can result in additional costs and detract from
investment returns.

Failure by the Fund to meet statutory requirements of effective governance and
administration could result in fines imposed by the Pensions Regulator (tPR).

Legal Implications

Failure by the Fund to comply with legislation and/or statutory guidance can result in
enforcement action and fines from both tPR and the Courts via judicial review.

Equalities Implications

There are no direct equalities implications.
Other Potential Implications

There are no other potential implications.
Schedule of Background Papers

WMPF Annual Report and Accounts 2022
http://www.wmpfonline.com/annualreports.

Report to Pensions Committee: Annual Report and Accounts 2021/22
Annual Report and Accounts 2021-22.pdf (moderngov.co.uk)

Schedule of Appendices
Appendix A: Risk Register

Appendix B: Key Performance Indicators

Page 72


http://www.wmpfonline.com/annualreports
https://wolverhamptonintranet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s220694/Annual%20Report%20and%20Accounts%202021-22.pdf

dav

‘sjuawalinbal uongLIuoo

ainjn} pue uonen|eA ay}

JO 8W02)N0 8y} uo sivhojdwa yym
Buibebua Apuaind si pun4 ayl

‘uonen|en |elenjoe
220z @y} Jo ued se weiboud
Juswabebus peoliq e Bupepspun
s| pue si1akojdwa Buioey sanssi
3y} 0} SAIISUSS S| pun4 ay |

SUONEdIUNWWO)
ajelsodion

aoual|Isay
JeuonesadQ

Aliqisuodsey
ajesodion

slawoisn)
pue ajdoad

'S991N0S dWOooU|
paonpal pue Sjulel}suod
196pnq jo doipyoeq

e jsuiefe suonnqguuoo
1o Bumes ay) aoueleq

0} paau ay) 0} Buipes)
S]S0O pue uoljejul Buisu
Aq uaaup Buiaq Jueuanod
JaAojdws uo ainssald

yojaujs 10bpnqg pue
Buipuny JaAojdw3

dav

“Inoineyaq
Jagqwaw uj 8bueyd paseasou ue
uaos },usey pun4 ayj Japenb siy
“Aynnoe

juswabebus Jaquisw adeys

pue ojul paay [[IM Yydiym sassadold
pa|-laquiaw Ul Spua.l} peoyJom
JO}lUOW 0} SBNURUOD pun4 ayl
"S9OINISS

90IAPY ABUOI\ SE Uyons saAljeniul
juswulanob oy Bunsodubis
Buipnjour ‘woddns |ejoueuly Jopim
pue sa210yd uoisuad JIay} yim
sJjaquisw poddns 0} s}98S yoiym
ABajesys juswabebus Jaquaw
anjoeoud e sey pun4 ay]

Ajjgisuodsal
ajesodion

slawoisn)
pue gjdoad

suJaouod bBuipsenbajes

pue sjno jdo/sjsanbal

1IN0 Jajsued) pasealoul

1oy} [enuayod ayy Buipnjoul
‘JnoiAeyaq Jaquiaw pun4 ul
abueyd anup 0} |eiusiod ayy
aney Buial| Jo 1500 Buiseauoul
8y} pue SjulelISuod |eloueul

sinoiAeyaq Jaquis|y

uoIoy oy

a|qisuodsau
o)

"Jauenb

1se| SsIy} Jano BulApes)s swos
u99s sey YdIym JusWUOIIAUS
Jua1Ind ay) 0} uoioeal Asnpul
pue jaylew [eqo|b ul pabebua

S| pue slojiuow A[@Ailoe pun4 ayl
‘sjoedwil

19y ewW wia} Joys Buipuejsyym
1O wie ay} yum Abajens
uoleoo||e ||eJaAo S}l 0} adudl|isal
ul Buipjing @ouew.Jopad jasse

0} yoeoudde oib6ajeuis e Buey
Joysanul wis)-buoj e s| pun4 ay |

3si aebniw 0} Aeemuspun
SUOJ}OB pUE UJaOU0I JO} UOSEDY

diyspiemals

aoual|Isay
JeuonesadQ

uonejuswa|dwi

JUBWI]SaAU|

Ayoud
ajesodio)

300[Ino Wi} Jabuo)
Bunoedwi Ajjiejon wis)
-Joys pue sanssi |eonljodoab
0} Bunoeal syexew |eqojo

SJaAlLQ Jualin)

AmejoA 1exen

Page 73

JuswIuolIAUg
olWou09]

JEN
awayl iy sty

2202 19qwaaq

193169y ys1y 9163jeN)S — pUn4 UOISUS SPUBIPI 3SOM Y XIANIddV



"sINo00 abueyo aleym senbes|j0o

aoual|Isay
jeuonesadQ

AsliY
pue asueldwo)

‘sJouled

AJanIjap 8oIAIas/SIop|oyaxe)s
S}l pue pun4

8y} yjog ul sjuswalinbal

[IIMS pue abpsjmouy

‘Ayoeded ul ebueyo

days e buibuuq si Aisnpul

Page 74

10 Buy|ysdn Bunsoddns yiomawely suoisuad pue awayos salligeded
awdojanap pue abpaimouy sJawolsny | ay} ssosoe spuewap Buruodal abpajmouy
VHOH | Sl dojaasp 0} senuiuod pun4 ay | pue s|doad pue Ajxajdwod Buiseasou| |  |ealuyoa] sljeroads
"aujawi} pue adoos
109l0u4d yym aulj ui Aloaiep
urejuiew o} Ajjige s,pund sy}
I pue 824nosal jueljal 108loud
Se sliojoeljuod Aued paiyl
abiaws asay)
se sanss| pue sysi Buneeosa ‘saljIAloe
‘soaniwwod Buliasls pue speg) [ensn Sy ssauisng WwJa) Woys
108[01d 0} pauodal pue paiojuow aoual|isay yum asjwoidwod o} pasu
s| sy09foud Jolew | yum ssaibolid JeuonesadQ 3y} pue 82Jn0sal [BuJIB)UI
10} sanoud Bunodiuod ul
‘Aianiep 3siy | synsal ‘(spasu juswdojarap
uoddns 0} paJsinbal aiaym pue asueldwo) aoIAI8s pue Alojenbal
22Jnosal joafoid pue Aieiodwsy AQ uaALIp) saAleiIul
siebeuepy |  Buninioal syuswalinbal 82inosal sJawo}sn) abueyo ssauisng ajdinw abueyo
JOJUBS ||V | SH M8IASJ 0} SBNUIUOD pun4 8yl pue s|doad Bupjepapun jo ajeas ay | Buioinosay | yum aoed Buidesy Z
‘Juswabeuew pue swd}
10B13U00 Ul AOU8)SISU0d sapiroid
yoiym juswalinoold HpnD Ag
payuoddns ssao0.d juswabeuew
J0BJJUOD B SBY pun4 8yl
sJawolsn) Jeak
‘ssaoo.d Buluued pue ajdoad 1Xau ojul 196png pue s}so0d
196pnq s} Jo yed se s}so0o pun4 Ul asealoul [euolippe paAIadal
ul sasealou [epuajod Ayuapl aoual|Isay ue 9as Aew Sa2INIBS S92IAISS pue
0} sJaiddns yum jusweabebus jeuonesadQ pue spoob pajoesuoo spoob uo uonejul
40H Aea sayeuapun pun4 ayJ uo yidn uonejul [enuuy pue s}soo Buisry

uoloYy Joy

a|qisuodsal
18010

'©2/2202 1ano Abajess Buipuny
ay) apisbuoje pamainal buiaq
s| ABajel)s Juswiysanul s,pung ay |

)su ajebniw 0] Aemuspun
SUO[}OB pUB UJS2U0D 10} UOSEDY

|0Jju0o
1sod
awoolnQ
3Siy

JusWwISSasSsy

uo) 1sod

JUBWISSaSSY
sty
uo9-ald

Aond
ajesodio)

SJaAlLQ Jualin)

19y
awayl ysiy sy




‘pasAleue Bulaq ale sasuodsal
pue panss| pue padojaasp
uaaq aAey salieuuonsanb

aoueunsse Jaiiddng

‘ejep 109930.1d 0} Ayljiqisuodsal
[enpiaipul Bunybiybiy
ypm Jaylebo seale ysi

[enusyod Jo sseusieme asealoul 0}

Jauenb ise| ayj ul papinoid usaq
sey Bujuiesy saysaual sakojdwg

‘swia)sAs Bunesado

uoloYy Joy

a|qisuodsal
18010

8ouepinb uo jueljas sl pund ayl

)su ajebniw 0] Aemuspun
SUO[}OB pUB UJS2U0D 10} UOSEDY

|0Jju0o
1sod
awoolnQ

JusWwISSasSsy

uo) 1sod

JUBWISSaSSY
sty
uo9-ald

pue asueldwo)

Aond
ajesodio)

Jem 0} S8nNUNUOD pund ayj|

SJaAlLQ Jualin)

splepue}s BuiAjoAT

slawoisn) sysid JagAo Jo Juswdojanap S}l 0} saly|IgeIauNA
‘ABajeuss 1agho syl Jo pue ajdoad Buiobuo jo ybij ul | |euls}xa pue |eussjul
JUSWISSOSSE [BUI)JXS pUE M3IADI ajebiw 0} paiinbal saonoeld 0} anp suopouNy
[enuue ybnouy} aoualjisal Jaqhd Qoual|Isay Buinjons pue ysi JagAD s)l wiopad o}
SdOH | s dojaasp 0} senunuod pun4 ayl |euonesadQ | Buiseaioul U UIBIUOD [BQO|D a|geun s| pun ayl 3siy Jagho S
slawoisn)
pue ajdoad sjuswsalinbau
‘PNOIDON Se yons sjosfoud Bunodau
SdOH passnooy ejep ypm poddns 3siy pue Aiojnjes
pue ‘sjebie} ejep Aay ansiyoe pue aoue|dwo) (uomisuesy | j@8W 0} pun4 8y} Jo To)
dav 0} 921n0saJ passnooy Buiobuo wasAs Buipnjoul) uoneoyloal | Ajjige ay) pue mainal N
yyum Ayjenb ejep uo Buiiodas sy 2oual|Isay pue juswabeuew ejep uo ejep pue ejep Joj Buijioday pue
VHOH 90UBYUS 0} SBNUIIUOD pun4 ay| JeuonesadQ | juelas syoafoid Ay Jo JaquinN | Spuewap pasealou] uonewJoju| eyeq ¥ n%u
. ©
seale o
92IAIBS ||B SSOJOB Spaquia
‘Buissaooud jenuew pue suolisuel) wajsAs
Joj @oueljal pue ysu ayy Buionpai ay} se Buissaooud [enuew
Jo wie ayy yum Buissasoid Uo 99Ul pasealdul aq
pue peopjiom uo joedwi [IIM 218U} JBY) 3SH B S| @18y} | UORUSAJIBIUI |enuBW
a1ebiiw o) Joyddns alemyos ay} 20UdI[IS9Y | ‘WBISAS UIWPY UOISUBH MU pue sajouslolaul
SAOH | YlM 3IOM 0} SBNURUOD pun4 ay| JeuoneladQ | 8yj 0} suoiisuel) pun4 ay} Sy $S820l1d
Buioday pue 80UBUIBAOL) YSIiY I
sjew|o uo uoleynsuod JHN1d
ay} 0] papuodsal sey pun4 ay} ‘aouewlopad pue Buuojuow
Japenb juadal jsow ayy buung puaJ) Joddns 0} uoiewJoju|
juswabeuely Uo sndoy B yim
"awi} SIY} Je umouyun ue Burpodas pasealoul 0} Yiys
2Je SBWO0D)N0 [BUl BY} JOASMOH aoual|Isay |esauab e s| a1ay) Janamoy
'sawoono adeys pue wiojul |euoneladQ | JUSWISBAU| PUB SOUBUIBAOD) sjuawaiinbai
0} suoljeynsuoo ui pabebua Se yons seale uo aouepinb Bunodau
sey pue saipoq Alojeinbay wouy 3SIY Aiojeinbal pakejap 4oy pue aoueulanohb oy S|0JJU0) |euJdlU|

pue aoueINssy

19y
awayl ysiy sy




Page 76

aoUeUl] Jo peaH JOH
20UBINSSY

puB YSIY ‘80UBUIBAOL) JO pesH VYOH

suoneladQ Jo pesH SdOH

SUOISUad J0joali] JuelISISSyY dav

S]UBW]SOAU| J0J0alI(] JUBISISSY 1av

SUOISUad JO 10}j0aliq 8AllNoexg doa3

uonoY Joj 8|qisuodsay SIeoIO



Appendix B

West Midlands Pension Fund - Key Performance Indicators (KPlIs)

Benefit Operations Processes

West Midlands Pension Fund

22/23
Q2

22/23 Total

Reportin, Target
KPI Summary KPI Description v e i
Frequency Summary

R<80%
Refund Notification Notify member of Refund within 10 days of receiving required information Monthly A<90%
G>=90%
R<80%
Refund Payment Refund payments processed within 5 days of receiving required information Monthly A<90%
G>=90%
Transfer notification of transferred in membership to be notified to the S
Transfer In Payment L - Monthly A<90%
scheme member within 10 days of receiving payment 6 >=90%
Transfer in quotations processed within 10 days of receiving all the required R<80%
Transfer In Quote . N a P ¥ J q Monthly A<90%
information 6 5= 90%
Transfer out payments processed within 20 days of receiving required R<80%
Transfer Out Payment . N pay P ¥ 8 req Monthly A<90%
information G >=90%
Transfer out quotations processed within 20 days of receiving required R<80%
Transfer Out Quote . N d P 44 8 req Monthly A<90%
information 6 >=90%
N R Notification of the actual benefits within 5 days of receiving member option S
Retirement Notification N L Monthly A<90%
form (Retirement Notification) G >= 90%
Payment of lump sum and creation of payroll record within 5 days of receivin; R<80%
Retirement Payment Y N P N pay ¥ el Monthly A<90%
election form (Retirement) G >= 90%
R<80%
Retirement Quote Notification of Estimated Benefits within 15 days of retirement date Monthly A<90%
G>=90%
Deferred Retirement Notification of the actual benefits within 5 days of receiving member option Monthl :zgg:
Notification form (Deferred Retirement Notification) v G >= 90%
Payment of lump sum and creation of payroll record within 5 days of receivin; R<80%
Deferred Retirement Payment Y N P N pay ¥ el Monthly A<90%
election form (Deferred Retirement) G >= 90%
Issue quote letter within 30 days of the members eligible payment date or R<80%
Deferred Retirement Quote . d ¥ 8 pay Monthly A<90%
receipt of request from member 6 5= 90%
R<80%
Deaths Aq A of a death within 5 days of receiving the notification Monthly A<90%
G>=90%
Deaths Notification of Benefits |Notification of benefits payable to dependents will be issued within 5 days of Monthly :zgg:
Payable receiving the required information 6 >=90%
Payment of death lump sum will be made within 10 days of receipt of all the R<80%
Deaths Payment Y L . P ¥ P! Monthly A<90%
required information 6 >=90%

Customer Engagement and Communication

KPI Summary

KP1 Description

94%

98%

100%

99%

100%

100%

89%

97%

98%

98%

94%

92%

97%

99%

94%

95%

96%

93%

100%

100%

100%

89%

96%

99%

94%

89%

88%

98%

96%

99%

95%

97%

96%

99%

100%

100%

89%

96%

99%

95%

91%

90%

98%

98%

96%

Reporting
Frequency

Target
Summary

22/23

Q2

22/23 Total

KPI Summary

Customer Satisfaction

KPI Description

Customer satisfaction - feedback from events and interaction with members

N In accordance with PAS >85% of calls to received to the Customer helpline to R<85%
Customer Services Calls Monthly
be answered G >=85%
| . In accordance with PAS>85% of calls to received t o the Customer helpline to R<85%
Services Calls Monthly
be answered G >=85%

75%

97%

85%

97%

80%

97%

Reporting Target
Frequency Summary
Quarterly A<90%
G>=90%

99%

22/23
Q2

89%

22/23 Total

94%

Reportil T t
KPI Summary KP1 Description eporting arge
Frequency Summary
. In accordance with the PAS all member complaints to be responded to within REDFS
Member Complaints ) . Monthly A<90%
20 working days of receipt G >=90%
" P R<80%
In accordance with the PAS all employer complaints to be responded to
Employer Complaints L 3 ) LIG37 D > Monthly A<90%
within 20 working days of receipt G >=90%

91%

N/A

22/23
Q2

78%

100%

22/23 Total

86%

100%

KPI Summary

KPI Description

Reporting
Frequency

Target
Summary

Qi

Q2

22/23 Total

Empl Portal to by ilable 95% of the ti based king he
Employer Portal Availability I S| =SEEIERS Sitheltinellbasedonokheieuses Monthly Reos% 100% 100% 100%
monitored, G >=95%
Web Portal Availability Pens.ions Portal to be available 95% of the time (based on working hours as Monthly R<85% 100% 100% 100%
monitored, G >=85%
el g
c Descriptio 2 Q Q
o eq a
] Statutory Timeliness - Dat; R<80%
O FIEIY T EES = 2B All Fund reports to be submitted in line with service standard set to CWC Monthly A<90% 100% 80% 89%
% v |Breaches G >=90%
c o R<80%
E Statutory Timeliness - FOI's All Fund responses to be submitted in line with service standard set to CWC Monthly A<90% 100% 100% 100%
> G >=90%
o R<80%
o Statutory Timeliness - SAR's All Fund responses to be submitted in line with service standard set to CWC Monthly A<90% 100% 100% 100%
G >=90%
22/23 22/23 Total
Reporti
- KPI Summary KPI Description e Q2
c Frequency
© R<80%
- Common Data Common Data Monthly A<90% 98% 98% 98%
c G>=90%
v oo
£ £
]
&5
T o
S o Reporting Target
© KPI Summa KPI Description
S 3 o g Frequency Summary
S ABS ABS produced for 100% of eligible active member records Annually A<90% 91%
8 G>=90%
R<80%
DBS DBS produced for 100% of eligible deferred member records Annually A<90% 100%
G >=90%

Page 77


Appendix B


This page is intentionally left blank



This report is PUBLIC

Agenda Item No: 9

woviar o on | Pensions Committee
COUNCIL 14 December 2022

Report title Delivering our Corporate Plan
Originating service Pension Services
Accountable employee Rachel Howe Head of Governance, Risk and Assurance
Tel 01902 55 2091
Email Rachel.Howe@wolverhampton.gov.uk
Report to be/has been Rachel Brothwood Executive Director of Pensions
considered by Tel 01902 55 1715
Email Rachel.Brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk

Recommendations for noting:
The Pensions Committee is asked to note:

1. The work undertaken by the Fund to work towards the goals and ambitions outlined in
the Corporate Plan 2022 — 2027.

Page 79


mailto:Rachel.Howe@wolverhampton.gov.uk
mailto:Rachel.Brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk

1.0

1.1

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

This report is PUBLIC

Purpose

To provide Committee with an update on the work of the Fund in achieving its
deliverables and targets set out in the Corporate Plan.

Corporate Plan 2022 — 2027

The Fund adopted its corporate plan in March 2022 following a period of engagement
with our Governing Bodies, employees, and customers which helped shape the focus of
our service delivery and goals and ambitions for the next five years including;

e People and Customers — providing an inclusive and supportive environment for
individuals to develop knowledge and become engaged in pensions.

e Corporate Communications — building on the Fund’s strong customer services
proposition to deliver on our ambition to increase accessibility and engage
stakeholders.

e Compliance and Risk — building and maintaining integrated assurance, instilling
confidence in outcomes.

e Operational Resilience — enhancing the Fund’s ability to flex, adapt and respond
to change both through service delivery and developing our people.

¢ Investment Implementation — reviewing opportunities and changes which support
in working towards the longer-term Strategy Asset Allocation Benchmark, align
with responsible investment and climate change objectives and aim to build
resilience within strategy to deliver the returns required over the long-term.

e Stewardship — engaging to protect and enhance investment outcomes.

e Corporate Responsibility — ensuring we manage our social impact, add social
value and continue to support our employees and local community.

During the first quarter of 2022 the Fund remained committed to supporting our people
as the final stages of lockdown easing came into effect and the Fund moved to its new
offices in 19. This delivered on a number of priorities for the Fund, as it created a
welcoming and inclusive environment for our customer base together with enhanced
development and learning opportunities for our people with bespoke training facilities as
we look to develop our offering to our people and customers. The move to the new office
space has also supported our aim of Corporate Responsibility in creating a space that
lives up to the standards we seek of our invested assets and supply chain, achieving a
Building Research Establishment Environmental Assessment Method (BREEAM) rating
of very good in its fit out.

The Fund is committed to act to champion and develop initiatives to support employee
wellbeing and inclusion. As a member of the Employer Network for Equality and Inclusion
and through involvement in the Diversity Project, focused on the investment and pension
saving industry, West Midlands Pension Fund (WMPF) initiatives are currently focused
on social mobility (including through apprentice, trainee and graduate opportunities) and
neurodiversity (including through dyslexia champions and support), with the Fund
welcoming the opportunity to support these dimensions through the nature of its work
with both its people and its customers.

Page 80



2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

3.0

3.1

3.2

This report is PUBLIC

Following the period of office closures and online support services through 2020 and
2021, the Fund was able to open its doors once more and visit customers across the
region, offering face-to-face engagement to assist members with their pension benefits.
Year to date, the Fund has offered face-to-face engagement and training events,
alongside online and hybrid support, with feedback continuing to rate very good and
excellent. Supporting members with retirement planning and ensuring they are equipped
and supported in their decision making has been a key focus and demand for this
remains strong as demonstrated by the ¢2,000 served through the regional roadshows
during October/November. As cost-of-living pressures take hold, focus has shifted to
supporting members in finding pension savings and increasing awareness of alternatives
to opt-out, such as the 50/50 option within the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS).

In response, the Fund focussed its delivery on providing an inclusive and supporting
environment. Building on the success of last year’s active member campaign, the Fund’s
Member Services Team have been recognised for the retirement planning campaign for
deferred members, achieving Pensions Communication Initiative of the Year from
Professional Pensions, competing against large, private schemes to win the award.

Building on our Operational Resilience, the Fund continues to enhance its service
delivery and this year launched a review of its Pension Administration System (PAS)
engaging with a new provider to deliver the benefit calculation and member processing
system as well as new member and employer portals. The PAS will play a material role in
the delivery of core functions, looking to enhance efficiency and provide further
development for customer self-service.

In 2021, the Fund was within the first group of UK asset owners and LGPS Funds to
report and publish its 2021 Stewardship Code, receiving signatory status from the
Financial Reporting Council and the Fund has now achieved renewed signatory status
for 2022. In addition, the Fund has completed its initial target disclosures and submitted
these to the International Investor Group on Climate Change as progress continues to
build from the 2021 Climate Change Framework and Strategy, including the Fund’s
commitment to Net Zero.

Looking Ahead

The LGPS, and pension industry generally, continues to be an industry in the spotlight,
noting the recent reaction to the market volatility and increased oversight and reporting
requirements on LGPS Funds. In addition, the Fund continues to await regulatory
guidance on the McCloud remedy and pension dashboard implementation which will
require timely and targeted work to implement.

Over the next 6 months the Fund anticipates the outcomes from a number of key

statutory consultations, including the Consultation on Governance and Reporting of
Climate Change Risks.

Page 81



3.3

3.4

4.0

41

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

This report is PUBLIC

Over the next quarter, focus remains on supporting our people, acknowledging the
ongoing competition in the recruitment market as we look to develop our offering as a
people development champion, seeking reaccreditation of our Investor in People status,
as well as building and enhancing our employee inclusion approach through soft skill
development, including broadening of training opportunities for Mental Health First
Aiders. Recruitment and retention of the skills and experience required to deliver the
wide range of Fund core functions to the standard aspired and expected by Fund
stakeholders and regulators remains the greatest delivery risk at this time.

Triennial funding and investment strategy reviews have been developing over the year
and have evolved to reflect the changing market conditions and longer-term outlook.
These will move to formal consultation of key policy statements and employer
contribution outcomes over the coming weeks, concluding ahead of the statutory
deadline of 31 March 2023.

Financial Implications

The Fund’s delivery of its Corporate Plan and the initiatives developed to support are
included in the Fund’s budget for 2022/27, an update is provided in the Budget report.

Legal Implications

Failure by the Fund to comply with legislation and/or statutory guidance can result in
enforcement action and fine from both the Pensions Regulator (tPR) and the Courts via
judicial review.

Equalities Implications

The Fund undertakes Equality Impact Assessments for all new initiatives with
considerations given to Equality and Inclusion in line with guidance from the Employers
Network for Equality and Inclusion (ENEI). There are no implications.

Other Potential Implications

There are no other implications in this report.

Schedule of Background Papers

Corporate Plan 2022 - 2027

Schedule of Appendices

None.

Page 82


https://www.wmpfonline.com/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=12474&p=0

This report is PUBLIC
(NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED)

Agenda Item No: 10

wovia on | Pensions Committee
COUNCIL 14 December 2022

Report title Budget Monitoring 2022/23 and Quarterly Accounts to
30 September 2022
Originating service Pension Services
Accountable employee Chris Manning Head of Finance
Email christopher.manning@wolverhampton.gov.uk
Report to be/has been Rachel Brothwood Executive Director of Pensions
considered by Tel 01902 551715
Email rachel.brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk

Recommendations for noting:
The Pensions Committee is asked to note:

1. The value of the net assets of the West Midlands Pension Fund at the end of quarter
ended 30 September 2022 was £19.0 billion.

2. As at the 30 September 2022, West Midlands Pension Fund forecasts an underspend of
£6.3m at year end attributable to £5.7m forecast underspend on investment management
expenses offset by £0.6m forecast underspend on operational costs, primarily related to
lower employee costs.

Page 83


mailto:christopher.manning@wolverhampton.gov.uk
mailto:rachel.brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk

1.0

1.1

1.2

2.0

2.1

2.2

This report is PUBLIC
(NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED)

Purpose
The purpose of this report is to update Pensions Committee on the year end forecast at
the end of the quarter (six months) ended 30 September 2022 and provide an update on
the value of the net assets of the West Midlands Pension Fund at the end of the same
quarter.
The operating budget for the year to 31 March 2023 was approved by Committee on 31
March 2022.
Forecast Out-turn against Operating Budget 2022/23
The following table sets out the year end forecast as at the end of the second quarter, 30
September 2022, compared with the Fund’s full year operating budget:
Actual Budget | Forecast | Variance
2021/22 | 2022/23 | 2022/23 | Out-turn
£000 £000 £000 £000
Employees 7,859 10,426 9,460 (966)
Premises 474 698 793 95
Transport 2 25 28 3
Other Supplies and Services 366 411 398 (13)
Service Development 423 1,412 1,396 (16)
Professional Fees 1,170 1,764 2,115 351
Communications and Computing 561 780 829 49
Support Services 697 773 686 (87)
Miscellaneous Income (557) (600) (599) 1
Net Expenditure 10,995 15,689 15,106 (583)
cE:>c()tsetrsnal Investment Management 102,402 95397 89738 (5,659)
LGPS Central Charges 4,356 4,768 4,723 (45)
Total External Investment Costs 106,758 | 100,165 94,461 (5,704)
Total 117,753 | 115,854 | 109,567 (6,287)
Forecasts have been made using a combination of reviewing spend to date and taking

into account plans for the remainder of the financial year. At this midway stage, it is
anticipated there is likely to be an underspend on employees (£966,000) as the
recruitment to newly budgeted positions are ongoing but taking longer than usual due to
low level of unemployment across the country and the specialist nature of many of the
roles within the Fund. These external factors are affecting the Funds ability to recruit as
part of the normal turnover of employees, creating further in year vacancies, which are
also contributing to the underspend.

Page 84



2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

3.0

3.1

3.2

This report is PUBLIC
(NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED)

The overall underspend is partially offset by increases in premises costs. These relate
some uncertainty over the costs of the new premises at the time of setting the budget
alongside the increased utility costs impacting nationally. There is also a provision within
the forecast for final costs relating to the relocation of the fund operations. The premises
forecast is presented as a worst-case value at this time and improvements are anticipated
through the remainder of the year.

Similarly the forecast increase in professional fees further offset the forecast underspends
in employees. The majority of the increase in forecast relates to an addition to the scope
of work carried out relating to funding and investment strategy review. This is in response
to unforeseen changes and events during the year requiring additional in-depth review of
the Fund’s approach and response.

The forecast for investment management expenses is anticipated to be an underspend of
£5.7m. Investment management costs are heavily influenced by market movements and
investment performance and are therefore expected to fluctuate during the year. The Fund
will continue to take a transparent approach to reporting investment management costs,
including recognition of previously ‘hidden’ charges and recording of transaction costs
associated with turnover within individual portfolios but now increasingly captured in the
cost transparency initiatives being commissioned through an external benchmarking
company. These are analysed in depth on an annual basis with in-year forecasts being
revised in light of the changes in value, and nature of Assets under Management and new
information as it is received.

Following each year end, the Fund obtains, scrutinises and reconciles cost transparency
reports from managers as part of its annual Statement of Accounts preparation and audit
processes to be able to present the final position to Committee more accurately in its Out-
turn 2022/23 reporting. This information will in turn be used to refine the forecasting
mechanisms during the 2023/24 year.

Investment costs remain a key consideration throughout the Fund’s investment decision
making and the Fund continues to review and seek opportunities for cost reduction
where these can be achieved on implementation without impacting risk or expected
return.

Net Assets — West Midlands Pension Fund

The chart below provides a summary of the Net Assets Statement.

The Net Assets Statement estimates a value of £19.0 billion for the Fund at 30
September 2022 (£20.3 billion at 31 March 2022). This represents a 6.6% decrease

since 31 March 2022 and is largely attributable to the movement in equity markets during
the same period which saw FTSE 100 index decrease by 8.3%.

Page 85



4.0

41

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

This report is PUBLIC
(NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED)

West Midlands Pension Fund - Total Fund Value

25

109 203 19.4 158.0

20 18.5

15

10

31 March-20 31 March-21 30 June-21 31 March-22  30June-22 30 September-
22

Financial implications

The financial implications are discussed in the body of the report.
Legal implications

This report contains no direct legal implications for the authority.
Equalities implications

This report has no equalities implications.

Other implications

There are no other implications.

Schedule of background papers

Budget 2022/23 and Financial Plan to 2026/27, Report to Pensions Committee, 30 March
2022.

Schedule of appendices

None.

Page 86



This report is PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Agenda Item No: 11

CITY or

WOLVERHAMPTON
COUNCIL

Pensions Committee
14 December 2022

Report title

Originating service

Accountable employee

Report to be/has been
considered by

Quarterly Investment Report to 30 September
2022

Pension Services

Shiventa Sivanesan Assistant Director, Investment Management
and Stewardship

Tel 01902 556659

Email shiventa.sivanesan@wolverhampton.gov.uk

Rachel Brothwood Executive Director of Pensions
Tel 01902 551715
Email rachel.brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk

Recommendations for action:

The Pensions Committee is asked to note:

1. The global market and investment update paper prepared by the Fund’s Investment
Consultant, Redington.

2. Asset Allocation and Performance Reporting for the West Midlands Pension Fund
(WMPF), Main Fund and Admitted Body Separate Funds.

Page 87



mailto:shiventa.sivanesan@wolverhampton.gov.uk
mailto:rachel.brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk

1.0

1.1

2.0

2.1

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

This report is PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Purpose

The investment report covers developments in investment markets, asset allocation and
investment performance over the latest quarter in relation to the West Midlands Pension
Fund (Main Fund and Admitted Body Separate Funds). Supporting responsible
investment activities are covered in a separate paper.

Background

This paper aims to bring together routine investment matters relevant to the management
and implementation of the Fund’s investment strategy and related policies:

I.  The economic and market background environment in which the Fund operates
and the outlook for different asset classes.

II.  WMPF’s investment strategy is outlined in the Investment Strategy Statement
(ISS) and set in conjunction with the Funding Strategy Statement (FSS) to target a
return over the long term to deliver the asset values required to meet benefit
payments due to members. The Strategic Investment Allocation Benchmark
(SIAB) forms part of the ISS and includes the target asset allocation and the levels
of returns investment policies will be benchmarked against.

lll.  This report provides separate commentary on the Main Fund and Admitted Body
Sub Funds (ABSF), established for former employers of the West Midlands
Integrated Transport Authority Pension Fund, West Midlands Travel Limited
(WMTL) and Preston Bus (PB).

IV.  The SIAB policy targets were refreshed as part of the 2020 ISS review as
approved by the Pensions Committee in March 2020. Implementation of the ISS
changes continues to progress and this report adopts an interim benchmark
comprising policy targets that reflect partial transition to the strategic targets
outlined in the ISS, designed to better meet the future needs of the WMPF.

Executive Summary

As at 30 September 2022, the West Midlands Pension Fund’s market value was £18.8
billion (incl. WMTL and PB ABSF). Stock markets and fixed income generally fell over the
quarter (in local currency terms), although performance varied by region and sector.

The Main Fund decreased by 0.9% over the quarter outperforming its benchmark by
0.4%. Over the 1 bvcbyear the Fund decreased by 4.2% outperforming the benchmark
by 0.4%. Performance has trailed the benchmark over longer time periods.

The ABSFs experienced significant negative performance over the quarter and 1 year to
30 September 2022 which has impacted longer-term performance numbers. Negative
performance was predominantly driven by the Liability Driven Investment (LDI) and
corporate bond allocations. The LDI portfolios are designed to move in a similar fashion

Page 88



This report is PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

to the expected change in the value of the ABSFs’ liabilities in response to changes in
interest rates and inflation expectations.

4.0 Markets and Investment Background
4.1  The Fund’s Investment Consultant, Redington provides a quarterly update on the market
background and market performance over the quarter. The report for the quarter to 30

September 2022, which further sets out the outlook for the Fund’s key asset classes over
the coming months, can be found in Appendix A.

4.2 Returns for the major asset classes for the period are shown below:

Total Return (£) Quarter | 12 months
Global Equity (MSCI World) 21% -2.9%
US Equity (S&P 500) 3.5% 21%
Emerging Markets (MSCI Emerging Markets) -3.8% -13.2%
UK Equity (FTSE All Share) -3.5% -4.0%
Gilts (GBI UK All Mats) -13.2% -24.0%
Corporate Bonds (BofA ML Non-Gilts) -11.6% -22.2%
High Yield (BofA ML Global High Yield) 6.0% -2.8%

4.3  Over the quarter the US Dollar strengthened significantly against GBP. Towards the end
of the quarter there was significant volatility experienced in the UK gilt market resulting in
a sharp increase in yields and negative returns.

Page 89



5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

54

5.5

This report is PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

West Midlands Pension Fund

Main Fund Performance Summary

The Main Fund delivered a return of -0.9% over the quarter outperforming the benchmark
return by 0.4%. The Fund’s relative returns versus its benchmark over various time
periods are shown below.

Performance Summary to 30 September 2022

6.0%
4.7%
4.1%

4.0%

2.0%

0.4% 0.4%
0.0% - [ | [ | — -
-0.4%
3 o -0.9% 0 -0.8%
L. (2]
-4.0%
-4.2%
-6.0%
Quarter 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year

B Fund M Relative

The Fund outperformed its benchmark over the 12 months to end of September. Private
equity was a large contributor to positive relative performance as continued strong
performance from the portfolio outperformed the listed equity index to which it is
compared.

The Fund’s combined global equity portfolio and Infrastructure allocation continue to be
negative contributors to relative performance over longer time periods.

The asset allocation of the Main Fund as at the quarter end is set out overleaf. Interim
benchmark weights have been introduced to reflect partial transition to the strategic
targets outlined in the Fund’s ISS. Full adoption of the ISS targets will take some time,
especially for illiquid assets such as infrastructure and private debt.

The Fund remained overweight in growth assets versus previous policy targets, as a

result of existing equity poistions and the strong absolute performance from these asset
types over longer time periods.

Page 90



5.6

5.7

This report is PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Weight @ 30/09/22 Final 1SS target Interim Benchmark

Total Equity 52% A42% A8%
Private Equity 3% G% G%
Opportunistic 2% 2% 2%
TOTAL GROWTH 62% 50% i 56%
Caorporate Bonds 4% 4% 4%
Multi-Asset Credit'Specialist 3% G% G%
Emerging Market Debt 4% A% A%
Private Debt 2% 6% 1%
Infrastructure 5% 9% 7%
Property 3% 9% 9%
TOTAL INCOME 2T% Ja% J1%
Gilts 1% 2% 2%
ILG 4% 3% 5%
Low risk strategy (orphan liabilities) 1% A% 4%
Cash 5% 2% 2%
TOTAL STABILISING {incl. low risk) 11% 12% 13%

The Fund's focus remains on implementing the Strategic Asset Allocation (SAA) changes
as agreed as part of the 2020 investment strategy review. Efforts have primarily focused
on fixed income and private market assets, with steps being taken to move towards new
target weights in multi-asset credit, emerging market debt, private debt and infrastructure
in particular, with equity holdings expected to be trimmed over the coming quarters.

The most recent quarter has seen an increase in capital calls in relation to commitments

made to Infrastructure and Private Debt Funds and an increase in the cash holding at the
quarter end, pending a review of the allocation.

Page 91



6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

This report is PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

West Midlands Pension Fund
Detailed Performance Commentary
Growth Assets

The total combined equity fund delivered negative returns during the quarter, 1 year and
3 year periods but has produced positive returns over longer time periods to 30
September 2022.

The Main Fund’s passive equity assets are now almost exclusively managed by the
investment pool company, LGPS Central Ltd (LGPSC) with a large proportion of these
assets held in an LGPSC Global Equity passive fund. All passive funds performed
broadly in line with the respective benchmarks during the quarter, however, there was
divergence between region and strategy as shown below.

Quarter 12 months
LGPSC UK (FTSE All Share) -3.5% -4.3%
LGPSC Global ex UK 0.1% -1.7%
LGPSC Dividend Growth (Blended) -2.4% -2.2%
LGPSC Climate Multi-Factor 1.2% -1.3%

Over the quarter the Fund’s actively managed global equities comprised the LGPSC
Active Equity fund, an allocation to sustainable equity managers and a basket of global
equity futures.

The LGPSC Global Active Equity Fund underperformed the benchmark over the quarter
and 1 year period, however, has outperformed the benchmark over the 3 year period.
The LGPSC Global Active Equity Fund is a blended multi-manager portfolio consisting of
3 underlying portfolios.

Emerging markets performed negatively over the quarter with the Fund’s Emerging
Market Equity portfolio underperforming its benchmark. The portfolio has lagged its
benchmark over longer time periods.

The private equity portfolio outperformed during the quarter and significantly
outperformed over 1 year. The benchmark used for this asset class comprises listed
equities plus an outperformance target (with a 3 month lag). Over longer time periods the
portfolio has met expectations.

Quarter 1 Year 3 year
Private Equity Portfolio 1.5% 16.1% 20.8%
FTSE All World +1% (3m lagged) -8.0% -2.6% 9.4%

Page 92




This report is PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Income Assets
6.7 The Fund’s income segment has underperformed its respective benchmark over the
quarter and longer time periods. The aggregate property portfolio provided negative
returns over the quarter but has delivered strong absolute returns over the 1 year and
longer time periods.
6.8 The infrastructure portfolio delivered has delivered strong positive returns over the
quarter and 1 year, outperforming its return objective (CPI +4%), however, the portfolio
has underperformed against its return objective over longer time periods.

Quarter

1 Year

3 Year

Return

Relative

Return

Relative

Return

Relative

Infrastructure Portfolio

4.1%

1.6%

17.5%

4.7%

4.8%

-3.2%

Property Portfolio

-3.4%

-1.2%

9.6%

-3.4%

7.1%

-1.0%

6.9 The Fund’s fixed interest holdings produced negative performance as a result of the

increasing interest rate environment. Within the Fund’s fixed interest holdings, corporate
bonds have outperformed the benchmark over the quarter and longer time periods. The
emerging market debt and multi asset credit holdings underperformed their respective
benchmarks over the quarter, 1 year and 3 year time period.

Quarter 1 Year 3 Year
Return | Relative | Return | Relative | Return | Relative
Corporate Bonds -8.0% 3.0% -17.8% 4.1% -4.1% 2.7%
Multi Asset Credit -1.9% -3.6% -12.0% -6.6% -1.6% -2.7%
Emerging Market Debt | 1.2% -2.6% -13.6% -7.2% -4.2% -0.2%

Stabilising Assets

6.10 The stabilising portfolio comprises the Fund’s exposure to government bonds and index
linked securities and cash. The stabilising component of the fixed interest portfolio
delivered negative returns for the quarter as yields on sovereign debt rose (meaning

prices fell).

6.11 Over the quarter, 1 and 3 year timeframes the stabilising portfolio has outperformed its
benchmark.

7.0 Admitted Body Separate Funds (ABSFs)

Page 93



This report is PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

71 The current allocation for the two ABSFs is shown below.

WMTL asset allocation (excluding buy-in policy):

Asset Class Value @30/09/2022 Target % Current %
Total Equities £ 86,293,937 A43%
UK Equities f 6,226,292 3%
Morth America Equity Index f 34963224 17%
Europe (ex UK) Equity Index f 19,693,076 10%
Japan Equity Index £ 7,085,431 4%
Asia Pac exlap Dev Equ Ind £ 7,190,164 4%
World Emerging Markets Equ Ind £ 11,135,751 5%
MNewton Real Return £ 21,239,142 11%
Baillie Gifford DGF f 11,074,558 6%
Total Equities & DGF £ 118,607,637 16% 59%
Corporate Bonds £ 7,929 146 4%
Multi Azset Credit £ 47,318,873 24%
Private Debt £ 13,168,925 7%
LD £ 12,626,206 6%
Total Credit & Ldi £ 81,043,241 84% 41%
Cash £ 210,595 0% 0%

199,861,472 100%

The allocation to private debt is expected to increase over time. Commitments have been
made in this area, however, given the private nature of these assets, these commitments
will draw down from the growth portfolio over a period of time, moving the allocation
towards the target.

PB asset allocation:

Value @30/09/2022 Target % Current %
Total Equities £ 2,618,600 15% 20%
UK Equities f 217 530 2%
Morth America Equity Index o 1,145 384 9%
Europe (ex UK) Equity Index f 347,572 3%
Japan Equity Index f 296,253 2%
Asia Pac exlap Dev Equ Ind f 202,741 2%
Waorld Emerging Markets Equ Ind | £ 409,120 3%
Multi Azset Credit £ 3,834 023 29%
Corporate Bonds £ 2,334 400 158%
WMTL L f 2,051,513 16%
Cash f 2,203,638 17%
Total Fixed Interest, LDI & Cash £ 10,423,574 85% 80%

12.042,773.26



7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

This report is PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

The Fund has produced significant negative returns over the quarter and 1 year to 30
September 2022. All assets have contributed to negative performance, however, the
Fund’s fixed interest holdings have been the most impacted due to the increasing interest
rate environment. The diversified growth funds and the multi-asset credit allocation
continued to underperform their ‘base rate plus’ target performance.

Large falls in the value of the Liability Driven Investment (LDI) portfolio were experienced
particularly towards the end of the quarter due to sharp increases in UK gilt yields. Whilst
this resulted in negative asset returns for the LDI portfolio, the Fund’s liabilities are
expected to have decreased by a greater extent than the fall in the LDI portfolio.

A review of the Fund’s benchmark is currently being undertaken and therefore only
absolute Fund returns have been shown below.

WMTL Performance to 30 September 2022

5.0%

]
_5.0% .

-10.0%

-15.0%
-20.0%
-25.0%

-30.0%
Quarter 1 Year 3 Year Since Inception

m Fund
Fixed Income

Alongside the multi-asset credit holding in the bond portfolio, the corporate bond
mandate underperformed its benchmark over the quarter and 1 year period.

Diversified Growth Funds

Both Diversified Growth Fund holdings delivered negative absolute and relative
performance over the quarter and 1 year period.

PB Performance Summary

Page 95



7.7

7.8

7.9

8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

10.0

10.1

11.0

12.0

This report is PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

PB performance is summarised below. Similar to WMTL, the Fund produced significant
negative returns over the quarter and 1 year to 30 September 2022 with recent
performance impacting longer-term numbers.

The majority of negative performance was driven by the fixed interest holdings, in
particular the LDI portfolio given the sharp increase in UK gilt yields experienced over the
quarter and 1 year period. The LDI mandate is designed to move in a similar manner to
the Fund’s liabilities in response to changes in interest rates and inflation expectations.

A review of the Fund’s benchmark is currently being undertaken and therefore only
absolute Fund returns have been shown below.

PB Performance to 30 September 2022

5.0%

0.0%

-5.0% l
-10.0%
-15.0%
-20.0%

-25.0%

-30.0%
Quarter 1Year 3 Year Since Inception

M Fund
Investment Pooling
The Fund continues to work closely with its investment pool company LGPS Central Ltd
(LGPSC) to review the ongoing suitability of investment products and look for
opportunities to transition assets to the pool.
Financial Implications
The financial implications are set out throughout the report.
Legal Implications
This report contains no direct legal implications.
Equalities Implications

This report contains no direct equal opportunities implications.

Other Implications

Page 96



121

13.0

13.1

14.0

14.1

This report is PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

There are no other implications.
Schedule of Background Papers
None.

Schedule of Appendices

Appendix A — Redington Economic and Market Update

Page 97



This page is intentionally left blank



uonesodio)

I
®

Juswabeuepy
Ayundag uonewsioyu|

100.¢
pE[V N

salenioy Jo
A3noe4 pue
) 21Mlasu|

SVvO

pPalie)

[BIUSPYUOD pue S1eAlld

ceoe €0

31vaddn
LN3INLSIANI ANV
LIMAVIN dNOA

[ ]

pun4 uoisuad spuejpijn 1saMm mm
L 1 ]

L ]




r4 44\14r4e)

sdq €/l sdq /9

sdq e sdq L/

mmo_ L1z mmn 9

sdq €0¢ sdq 951
I

sdq g2 sdq st

sdq Ly sdq 6€

mmo_ 12 mmg LS

sdq gL sdq Lg
I .

sdq w72 sdq o€l

sdq 7€ sdq 902

mmo_ [ 34 mmg SLL

sdq 9L¢€ sdq ggL

L¢-dsS-0¢ ¢e-unr-0g

2ouls abueyd

9ouls abueyd

7 [ERUSPLUOD pue S3eALd

9G'L AO€
90°¢ AOC
L [ _______Sdllsn]
¢00- AOE
0c¢0 AOL
I Saley [eay HID N
18'€ AO€
14474 AOL
[ demsiddin]
|73 AOE
66'€ AOL
I UoIjelyU| UaAdYealg }ID
LL'E AO€
9 AOL
] SABMS EUILION >IN
LLE
6L1 AOL

[9A97

ejeq 194epn

"Z20T 1oquiydas 0€ 1. %/'ST 03 7Z0Z dunf O 38 %091
woly Apybiis paseatdsp ‘0466 ¥eA AQ painsesw se “su 9pIs-1assy e

‘Sjosse

Apadoud 1oy uondwnsse uinias paadxe Jomo| e Ag usALp Apbueg|
SeM SIUL "Zz0g 12quidas 0€ 38 %E'E + SHID 03 ZZOTZ dun( O€ 18

%*P"€ + SHIO wolj Japenb

a3 Jano Apybijs paseatosp sulnjas papadxy e

NOA 10j} sjuiod Ad)

pun4 uoisusd spue|piin IS\ A NOLONIA3Y

sdq g8 sdq 61- 95t PI3IA YbIH ueadoing
sdq 6.1 sdq G|- €LS PISIA YOIH [eqo|D
sdqg 63 sdq z1 €81 SpeID) JUBWISAAU| SN

sdqg g/ sdqg 9 191 apelo) JUBWISAAU| [BqO|D

sdqg zg sdq /- 881l Xapu| +AGL HID-UoN bBuisls

sdq €9 sdq g SEl Xapu| 319-UON Bulpals
/! | SPeaidsipa
%8'L %C'C- 9’191 dg9 SA Adl
%LC- %6'L- Ll dg9 sA¥n3

%L LL- %€ 8- ZLL dg9 sAasn
! | | _______ Xi
%S'Le- %<8~ 689 s19elA bulbisw3 DSIN
%S'SL- %V~ 7089 PIOM IDSIN
%0°0L- %8°0- LIy S¢¢ 19PN
%E'SL- %L€E- L8Y1 0§ xx0350.1n3
%591~ %617~ €09. 00S d®S
%60 %L'C- 9v0L 00l 3S14

9ouls abueyd

B Se 10e 0} pue 19)Jew AJSpJo Ue aInsus 0} UORUSAISIUI pue|bug Jo yueg
J10j paau ay) pue Ajpinbi| 18sse oy puewap paseasdul AjseA 0} pa| Siyl

¢g-unr-o¢g
?duls abueyd

ejeq 194epn

o
S
]
©
<
*Sa11IUD JUDA|OS 0] OSB3 1SE]| JO JBpud)| a
OISy
AB331e11S ‘O1D)
'SABD 550y dijiyd

M3y e 3sn[ ul BuLLIND20 SIEA |BJ9ASS Ul PRAISSAO ¢ Ajjewlou pjnom ey
SUOIIDRJIP Y10g Ul SOAOW UM ‘spiaiA |eas ul Ajjnejoa ybiy AsoA 03 pa| 3 Xiw

3y 0] esiw Adijod pasianal MOU e Pappe MM Y3 USYAA "SISSSe YSi 1sowl
wo.y souew.opad Jood pue pliom 3y} ssoloe SpialA |ead ul sasu pided 03 pa)
sey uoneyul Bupnpal ul |nJsse0oNs a4 [|IM ASY] Jeyy suonedadxs 1eylew

pue uonejjul 1equiod 03 sajed Bupjly syueq [eJjusd JO UOReUIqWIOD 3yl

Alewnwing 19)1ep

JdILAVNO FHL ONIYNA AIN3IddVH LVHM



2207 7O | [enuSpyuoD pue S3enld punJ UOISUSd SPUBIPIA 1S9 A NOLONIA3d

"JUSWIRUIS JJO-XSH JO JNSal B Se pauapim spealds se aaiebau sem aouewoplad

obeJajigJe Jobiow ‘sa16a1ea)S USALIP-JUSAS UIYYIAA "SISSSE DAISUSS-UOIIR[UI PUB SWODUl PpaXly Yiog AQ USALIP

‘xapul Ajed sy T¥4H dU3 10) %/ Z°9- JO suinial yum ‘porsad ayy buunp paoesiap Ajlled ysiy “1auenb auyy
JoA0 paIbbnuys Yoiym ‘1ojoe) anjep ayy 03 a4nsodxa aAneal uo Juspuadap asom suinyald 9jA1s Ayinba ybnoyye (3@ssy
'sa1b23e.43S BlWRId YSI PaLISISAIP SWOS J0) duewopad padpy siyl "ojgeijold Apenoned buieg buluonisod -1I}INW) SIdHe pinbiy
puoq 1oys Se ||am se dsn 03 24nsodxa YIIM ‘sulniad Jua|i@oxa a1eauab 03 anuiuod BuiMmojjo) pual) mes ap\
"paxiW alow sem soljoj1iod pajuslio-anjeA-aAne|a.l
2J0W SssoJoe aouewloyad ajiym ‘pa|bbnas Ajjesausb seiq buoj e yym saibajens 1asse-nnul ‘@dusnbasuod
e Sy "uone[jul 3Noge suJsduod paulybiay 03 aNp SauUlPIp [BRURISANS PaJayNs SSIIPOLILWOD pue spuoq
‘saninb3 "saibajens aAneul}e pinbi pue Jasse-RNW SSoJde pash S}9SSe Ysi peolq Joj ajdsal sy paJayo €0

1)jeMm-dem woj

'S}oxdew sayy Ul J913aq pawoyad Ajijend) ‘Jensmoy

xopul ay3 buibbe| anjep pue 1s9b6uons ayy buiwioad WNIUSWOK UM ‘|NT ul AI0JS Jejiwis e sem 1 *1eah ay)

ul Jaildea pajejnwindde suieb sy jo uonaod obie) e dn uaalb mou Buiaey pue dyJewydusq ay3 buiwiopadiapun
Ajleisrew “1ayienb au Jano piebbe| ulew sy sem anjep “wiopadispun Ayjend) pue Ajpamisod wiopad  (S9RINDI) syaxie pinbi
WNJUSWOIN MeS |\ ‘@Aiadsiad J10oe) B Wod4 "uoIssadal Jo sieay buiobuo yyum pajdnod sem siyl “uonepul
buiybly uo snooy J1IvYY Bunesayal sHueq [eLUD YIM ‘sajed 1salajul Buisll pue uonepul Jnoge suiaduod a1om
21aU] ‘ZD 0] JejiWIS "SWIS) dgo Ul padunouold SS9 Je) S1oM SHO-||9S 9SaU) Jueauwl Jejjop ayl shstaA punod ayy
Jo Buiuayeam juedyiubis ay] “4a3enb ay3 Jo pua ay3 1e bullunddo o-||9s abie| e AQ USALIP 12YMBWOS ‘suinial
anjosge aAnebau pasaAlRp uloq (IN3,) s1oxtew buibiows pue (Wa,) sioxiew padopaap [eqolb ‘€O J9A0

auAep 194110

"9sed a3 o9 AjLleulpJo
pINOM UeL} J33se) yonw paysiusjdas aq 01 papasu |ended 1q7 se ‘abuajjeyd e pasod siy) *paads p4odas
1B 9SBaJD9p SJayNg |eJoIe||0d I 19Ul MeS sawayds uoisuad Auew ‘JoAamoH “pabueyoun Ajpeolq S|aAd)
Buipuny Buinea| “ouAs ul paaow sanjea oljojlod 1QT pue sanijigel ‘oded ul paulewsal sabpay a1aym ‘pajpadxe sSpuog JudWUIDA0D)
Sy "9s0J0 snoinaud ayy wody sdggoT Buljies spRIA 1eas 03 pa) Udiym ‘pauaniaul puejbu3 Jo yueg au Joquiaidas
U182 U 'sdqrg sem 966T aouls Aep 9|buls e JoAo aaow Jsable| ayj Ajjed1olsiy ‘1xa3uod o4 sdqgg 1aypny
e AQ paseanul pey Asyj Aeppiw Aq Joqui=idas yigz uo ‘sdqz/T Aq paseasoul spialA [eaJ Jeak-0¢ ‘taquiadas e)smojjeliy aje)
Ul/Z PUB pIEz Usamiaqg sAep ssauisng € U3 JoAQ "AJ|IIBJOA JO S[9AS] SWaJ3x2 Mes SpiaIA 16 pajep-6uoj
“uawadunouue 126png-1uiw ayy buimojos ‘Jaquiaidas ug “4o3enb ayy uo dn sdqsg/ spiaIA |ead JAQE Buined)
‘sdqzg Aq paseatoul uonepyul usAyealq ajiym sdqozT Aq asod syjib jeuiwou “‘quiod JeaA-Qg 9yl Je ‘zz0z £O Ul

P

SL1SIVIOAdS SSVT1I 13ASSV JHL INO¥YUd SM3IA



20z 2o 7 |enjuapljuo) pue ajeAlld

‘Ajjigepioye pue Ajljige|ieAe sbebpow pasnpas pue siiseu Aydws QIAQD-3sod Jo puewsp paseatdul

‘llesuoys Alddns buisnoy |ein3onais bulobuo ayy Aq papoddns ‘s10309sqns Jual|iSad 3SOW 3Y) JO SUO 3q 03 pajdadxe

S| ‘|eyual ul AjenonJed ‘ajelss [ead [enuapisay sjudioos Hs3 buons pue ymolb jejual 3snqod ‘sajed Aouedea

MO| UO pasnd04 SI03SaAUL UM ‘€0 81049q ||om Aemuapun sem Ajijenb 03 Jybiy sy ‘sAndadsiad |ejuswepuny e wo.4
*Ajpinbi| ae18uab 03 10 — SAYN

€0 ul suonenjea 03 sabueyd aseq 03 YdIYM JJO SDUSPIAS pa)illl] Sem JaY] ‘splemuo Jawwns ayy wol) Apuedyiubis
pamojs Buiaey SSWN|OA UoORIBSURL UM “I9ASMOY ‘AleA |IM BuluS)JOS 9D1d *Suoien|eA uo ainssald piemumop pue
sp|aIA Ayadoud uo aunssald piemdn juedijiubis sem ausy) ‘4oquuisidas JO Xoam ise| ay3 ul spiiA 3116 ul abins ayy yum
"sIaumoawoy a3eAlld pue siadojpAsp [eJawwod Hbuidedw) 1gap JO 350D paseasdul SYl YIIm

‘sasi ajed Aq usAup ‘pauinddo €O ojul buiob :eise |ead YN ul buluayos pRIA sdq 05-Gz Jo uoneydadxs |elsuab syl

"UIY} 919M SBWN|OA INQg ‘19pIm

sdq QT-G 9J4om spealds Jaj0-piq €0 104 SUOREDIPUT *SIUNOISIP %S-0 1B pape.y AjjedidA} sebejuia paiojdap Apusdal
2202 TH uI ‘syuswisanul Azewnd snsian (si1eah ¢-z AjjeaidAy) soljopiod BulApiapun jo uoneinp Jajoys pue Ajiqisia
Buipinoad osje ajiym ‘saunsodxa buiduejegal JO sueaw e siauled pajiwi| J240 suondesuel) A1lepuodas JIpaJd ajeAlld
'S9SEaJOUl 3k Ul-[|e Jo [eyded JO 350D SJaM0.I0q SU) 0] 10943 [eulbiew AjpAReRI )

Bbunybiybiy ‘s1ebiey xg ¢ |1e21dA3 sa (Udaiq) X9 z Aj93ewixoidde je Ayyesy paulewsd sueo| 103J1p J10j soljel 9belanod
1sa193ul ‘Ajjuepiodw] 9ARAISSUOD AjBuisealdul 819m SOel SNjeA-03-URO| ‘SJuRUSA0D 133ybny apisbuo)y 'sndoy

33 sulews. uondalo.d apisumoq ‘saled adualalal buneops sy wods dn-ydid pRIA [eanjeu ay) bulAuedwoddoe ‘syunodsip
aouenss! paaoldwi pue zO SA asealdul pealds sdq G/-Gz Jayiny e 0jUl paje|suRl) puewap pajeAs|s “siauped

3pa1d a3eAud 03 bujuiny Ajbuisealdul aue saiuedwod a3eald ‘(d1601eaq) 2Z0Z TH 104 SSNjeA OdI Ul SUIDap %E/ B
puUB JUSWLDUDIID] SDURUL YURG PANURUOD YUAN €0 JOA0 3SNQOJ paulewal 3pald ajeald ‘Ajinejoa peasdsapim ispiuy

'syaxew 16 pue ypatd Bullls ul AJjiejoA JO 924n0s e sulewad sonijod

MN 3)Iym ‘uoseas bunodal 23e10dI0d ay) J9jus am Se Ljjeay 23e10dlod spiemo) payiys sey uonuany “Adualind

|2J0] pue pJey yloq ‘spuoq joxiew buibiaws uo ainssald Ind 03 panunuod spiRIA Ainsealy sn buisu pue (pbuans
Jejjop s ‘suonejdadxs a3es 3sau93ul Ul 96.4Nns e Jo sjsusq sy} paybismino Sulsduod UoISSeIa. pue sduew.oadino
pajuspadaldun ,Ssepd 19sse aY) JO UoieUIqUIOD B Se paulpap saold ueo| pabelaas] ‘Dnuepy auy3 JO SapIs Yi0q SSo0y
*AH SN Ul Jejiuis sem ai1njoid ay | *SsjuswiaAow 33ed Jo 1pedul a3 19s40 03 ybnoua jou Inq ‘pouad ayy Jano pauiybn
spealds JipaJtd se aanisod atom (3gap JuswuIBA0b JuSJRAINDS SNSISA) SuUIN}al SSE0Xe AH ueadoung -uoisiadsip pealds
J0 Aem 3y ui oM AuoA passaunm (sg g sdg Ajjernadsa) siaxiew AH “1aybiy paaow sajea pue spealds se aanebau
[InS suaniaJs Yum ‘1sneq padey 3ipald apelb-juswisaaul ueadoing pue sn siawaopad 3siom ayy aam (,AH.) PIRIA Uubly
pue apelb jusunsaaul buls *adoin3 ui Ajjepadss ‘Jsybiy quuipd J1vyy panunuod s3s0d Abiaud pue pajadxs ueyy
Jaybiy paurewsad sainbiy uoneyul se saijod diwouods JvY) buluajybn psnunuod syueq [eljuad 1xiew padoasg
“snbny-piw AqQ S39xyew JIpald Jy senjq Jawwns pue buoj 1se| jou pip euoydna s,AInc Ing ‘Ajjed e yum papels €0

pung uoisuad spue|plA 1S\ A ZO.-@Z_Dwm

syode pinbyr

13||IW Yedes

3paJD pinbyx

piep epu]

npan
pinbr-1was 3 pinbn

soyjig sHYD

SLSITVIOAdS SSVTI L3ASSV JHL INO¥d SM3IA



7202 2O _ [eUSPLIUO) pue 31eALd

Aynb3 23eAld %T°8

spund aisiunpoddo %0°¢

Ayiadold %8

2Inpnaseu] %T°g

1Pa1D D3eAlld DSdDT / IT SNDO4 SI9POIYIS %E T
spund 192 14el bulblow3 9%/ ¢

3pa1D SSeD-BINW %€

pun4 puog 2)elodio) DI dAIRDY [2qo|D [BAUSD SdDT %6°0
spuog 23e10d10D MN %L'C

pun4 puog apeis) JUSWISSAUT pajed Hoys uobay 9,5°T
uelpuoly - saiinb3 syaxey bulblowg o,/ 1

11D - saninb3 syxely Buibiawy 9492

49V - seninb3 sysle|y buibiews o%g'g

g3HM - seiInb3 3|qeuleIsns %9°0

29y - Seinb3 9|qeulrIsns %7z

xedw] - sanINb3 3|qeulrIsnS %7

suonisod Aynb3 J9)jews %10

UOUAT |[IIBIN Yim pRy saiinb3 94g 0

a1eys IV N WIDT %E 0

pung sebeuey By ANb3 [eqo|D [eAUSD) SdDT %0°9

pun4 J03e4 ninjy a1ewi;) Aynb3 pom IV Sd91 SOV %6°0T
pung 103064 Yimois pusplialq Aunb3 |eqo9 Sd97T SOV %T°E
pung AjInb3 aAissed MN X3 [BqO|D Sd97 SOV %9°ET

pund aaissed AINb3 N Sd97 SOV %0°9

pung puog sessIaAQ WIDT %S 0

SHID |_UILION %/"0

SHID PAAUIT-XdPUI % Tt

ysed %Sy

"Xipuadde au) Ul 3.e SuimaJ pajIsaxs ssejd 1asse ‘dJoN

s1odel pInbyiIm 3PSO pInbyT =

%S'€

%0°€

%S'C %0°C %S'T

%b'€

%T'0

%E€

%710

(s1116 1200) @BURYD UOIINLIJUO) UINJDY pa3dadx]

pun4 uoisusd spue|piin IS\ A NOLSNIA3™

s)xde pinbijT =
3pa1) pinby|L =
3pa1) pinbr =
Syl pinbr =

ysed g sublolanos m

%L ET

uoiedo||v 39ssy pajieiad ®
-
(0]
<
Wpa pinbr = Sydpe pinbi = S1xe pinbyiIm 331D pInbiI = 3PpaL) pinbijm  S1xIeW pinbim ysed R subiasenos m o
%0°T %S0 %00 %00T %06 %08 %0/ %09  %0S  %0F  %0f  %0Z  %O0T %0
ze-ung %1 €T %Y'TT %9'0T EEk4aW
%V’
zz-das %L'ET %T'CT %0'CS 7e-des

%¢€'C

abueyn uonedo||y 19ssy

FANSOdX3 ANV NOILLVYIOOTIV L3ASSV ANOA



2202 20 7 |enuapijuo) pue ajeAlld pun4 uoisusd spue|piin IS\ A NOLONIA3Y

(w3) anjep pung u; adueyd (w3) anjep pung u; asueyd

0 000¢- 000t~ 0009- 0008- 000¢C 0 000¢- 000t- 0009- 0008-

sdqoot dn upan - (%0°T-) ¥8T-
Supade) - (%1°1-) LOT-
sdqQOT dn saies uoneju) (%6°0) 2LT —

uewya I (%6°S-) S60T- sdqoOT UMmop sojel 3saIau]  (%8°T) 0E€E -
cickipiinug AanipIIAAe
SISAjEeuUY ClieUsoS
2 S
o > N
R S 0 ¥ S O
/mvs N @Aoz > > /o\% e/vo/ ﬁ&@ //44 /vvoak J/%.«u -
S & & S - I &£ e @ O
& & & & Si & > Ny ™ N © &0 S W S N & S o
%0 @©
ol
%S
%0T
[— %ST <
: — %81 %
west . wrp  %E0 WEO  %TO IO %LT ’ %07 @
X
=3 %ST
— %00 %L'S
- . %8'T ’ ’ %0€
%ST %10 %S0 %91
0
%91 %9°0 %L1 %S€

(AluQ 319ssV) 9456 Nshi-1e-anjeA Jualin)

MSIA 3dNOA ANVLSHUIANN NOA ONIdTIH



20z 2o 7 |enjuapljuo) pue ajeAlld

pung uoisuad spue|plA 1S\ A ZO.-mUZ_Dwm

S3JIAN3ddV

Page 105




2202 20 7 |enjuapljuo) pue ajeAlld pung uoisuad spue|plA 1S\ A ZO.-@Z_me

*1OMO| Ajqelapisuod oq Aew pue spue|piiy 1S9 104 pajenobau aq pjnom 994 yoea ‘aoioead ug *Abajens yoes u siobeuew paliajoid JO S99) UO paseq pajewllss S| elep 994

(994 2ouewopdd +) %/ 0-%S 0 %S T %E"E (spalodd S|0YM) 2NPNIISEIUT BjGemaudy

%9°0-%t'0 %8'TT » %0°¢ Ayadoud [ensswwo)

(994 @ouewlopad +) %G T-%0'T 1+ %boc %L'Y Aunb3 a1eALq

s1a)4eW pinbijix

(994 @ouewIoMad +) %G T-%0'T T+ %691 § %8’ suonenyis |enads

%L'0-%S"0 1+ %6'S § %0t sanunpoddo pasnuInNdes

(994 souewlopad +) %S T-%0°T T %t 1+ %9s 3paJ) pinbyy1 2nsiunpoddo

%S"0-%E"0 T+ %0¢ 1+ %t (pe3saAulun) spinbiiT Buiydlell palyisioAId

Npa4) pinbijix
%<.L'0-%%¥'0 » %P8 AF %8’V |[eqo| ypaLd) mmm_u-_u,_:_\%
%8'0-%S'0 » %%b'8 « %€ ubialanos Adualin) pieH — 1geq 19MJe buiblewx
%8'0-%5S°0 » %6’ET %t ub1a1aA0S Aduauin) |B207 — 1gaQ 19BN mc_mbEm_%v
%9°'0-%%¥"0 » %cC L « %¢C'€ sojelodio) — 1gaq 1Ien mEQoEﬂﬂw

%E’'0-%C 0 § %19 § wce SAIDY — dgo 199 1el0dlo)

%2 0-%T0 « %09 ﬁ, %8'T ANISSEed — 499 1g2Q @3e40d.10)

3pa1) pinbry

%Z'0-%T°0 & wcoe %Iy soninb3 syoyepy Buibiaws

%%P’'0-%C0 § w6'sT %8'E saninb3 s|geuleisng

%T'0-%0°0 %697 %S¢ soninb3 19y4e padojeasqg

Annb3z

€202 ¥349INdL1d3S —- SNANLIY A3103dX3 S(NOLONIA3Y



2202 20 7 |enjuapljuo) pue ajeAlld pung uoisuad spue|plA 1S\ A ZO.-@Z_me

*dMIND
19 >N 3Y3 10 dAIND dems a3ed 3sasajul Jed a3 ‘oidwexa o4 “Ajunjew Aq sjuswinuisul [elpueuly Jo 39S e Jo SpIRIA ayy buimoys uonejuasaldal jeaiydelb vy

*abejuaniad |enuue ue se passaldxa Ajjensn S| pue A3INd3S e JO SMOJ) USed PaAISdal 3y} UO Paseq S 3T "JUSLWIISAUI UB UO UJN3aJ SWodul ay |

*0lj0j11od 10 313sse By} JO anjeA ayy uj abueyd usAIb e Jo Ajjigeqoad ay3 93endjed 0} 24NSeaW Sy} SN 0} 3|ge aJe oM ‘suoidwnsse ujepad Japupn “uinial
,519sse e JO anjeA ay ul 9Bueyd UOReIASP PJepuels aUo JO aNnjeA ay) SJuasaldal 3] “YSK J0j DS UOWWOD e Se pasn s 1ey) AJljigeLieA Jo ainseaw vy

"9J0W JO uol||iw 00ZF JO JedA
93 490 sSO| e Buayns Jo (0z-ul-T) dueyd 9SG e DARY PINOM } ‘ol 00ZF S! YeA JedA-T 9,66 S,01104110d e Ji ‘Bidwexs 104 *[9AS] U3PLU0D (%56
'9'1) 0Z-UI-T B pasn dAeY I\ "UOZIIOY dwWi} USAID e JDA0 ‘|9AS] 20uspijuod UdAIb e 1oj (3si 18) 9s0| 03 1adxa pjnom pund ay3 18y} anjeA wnwiuiw ay |

'80-£00¢ 40 SIsI1D |ebueuld [eqo|D
a1 pue Aepuo Yeig ‘11/6 Buunp oljojiiod e jo souewiouad sy} S1eNWIS 03 Pasn 3 Ued 153] SSaNs e ‘ajdwexs 104 *SOLIeUSDS SNOLIBA SS0I0. Pa||opoLu
9Q UeD pue 3sIaXa JI 1M, e S| Buisa) Ssalis ‘asuas 1sapeolq ayy U "syooys — ajqisneld ing — abie| 03 ainsodxa s,01j0j310d B Ssasse 03 pasn |00} i

239 “IsK Ajnba “isu J1paJd YSI uoneul Se Ydns Sa2IN0S SNOLBA 03 YSK |e103 JO sjusuodwod uiepad buingupe jo ssanoud ayl

"3N|eA JO UoIS0IS 3y} J93ealb a3 ‘uonepul Jo
93kl 3y} Jaybiy ayy — awiy JoA0 Asuow JO anjeA ay3 saonpal Ajlenpeub 31 awi} JOA0 asealdul (Sa0IAIRS pue spnpoud Jo) saoud ydiym e ajel abessae ay |

"SpUOQ JUSWIUISA06 UO paIA 8y} 03 UOKE|R] Ul PRIONb UBYO 31 ST "ISH JPaJd [eJuSWBIOUI Bupie) Wwol) uies
UBD JOIS3AUI U PJ3IA [euonippe ay) S193)4a. pealds 3pasd ayl “Ajijenb 31paid Juasayip 03 aNP ‘SpUOQ JUJaYIP OM] US3MIS] PIRIA 3y} Ul 9dUBIBYIP 3YL

(311 J1pa1d Apediaiunod) 10eIU0D DAIRRALIDP B Japun
sjuswAed axew 03 palinbal si Apediayunod e asaym Jo (3gap apedy) siaiddns sy 03 Asuow samo Auedwod e YdIym Ul 9SOY3 Se UdNs “MSi JIPaJD SA|OAUI
sdiysuonejau Jo sadAy Auely “anp awodaq Aay) se sjuswAed axew 03 Aua ue Jo ssaubuljimun 1o Ajjiqeul 9y3 JO }NSaJ B Se SSO| [eldueul) JO YSH ayL

'(¥31) ones dsuadxa |e303 s,puny e dn axew JWY Y3 YIM pauIquuiod usym YdIym ‘s1sod aAiesisiujwpe *6°a ‘sasuadxs |euoippe
SOpNJOXa SIY] *SJasse paIsaAul ay3 uo abejuadiad [enuue ue se passaldxa AjjedidAy ‘puny ayy buibeuew Joy Jobeuew jasse ayl Aq pableyd 994 ayl

AN PRIA
PRIA

Aunelon

(¥en) Ysry-1e-anjep

N~
o
bunsa| ssans—

)

3
uonnqUY sry
[l

uoneyur

peaids 3pai)
sy 1paID

(OWYv) ab1eyd
Juswabeuely [enuuy

AAVSSO19O



»N°02°uc1BUIPID PJOJBM UI||D

0T 7202 7O | [enuspyuod pue s3eAud

*fHZ ¥ZD3 ‘uopuo ‘pno) [9buy auQ ‘9 1004 201440 patalsibay “sojep pue puejbul
ul pasajsibail si pue Ajloyiny 3onpuo) [epueuld auyy Aq pajenbal st (9000999) pauwI uolbulpay

"[HZ ¥7d3 ‘uopuoT “Uno) [abuy duQ ‘9 100j4 - ssappe Bulmoj|o) BY3 e pajiwi uolbulpay 0} apeu 3q
pinhoys uoissiwaad 10) uonedlddy “uoissiwiad INOYHM Spew 9q Aew JusWN0P SIY} Jo Hed ul Jo Sjoym
ul uone|sued} 1o uoissiwsues ‘Adod ‘uoidnpoadal oN *paAtasal Sybu ||y “zz0Z paywi] uolbuipay®

‘BuiyrAue op 03 J1wo 10 op 03 Ajed paiy3 e 1o NoA AQ UOISIDap Aue JO Siseq e wioy

0} pajiwi uojbuipay Aq papusiul Jou S| JUSWNJOP SIY | "S3elndde se uodn paljas Jou pue Ajuo aAiensn||l
se pajeal; aq pjhoys ‘(ainjeu Jayjo Aue Jo 10 me| ‘bBuunodoe ‘xey Jo 30adsal ul Jaylaym) sisAjeue ||y
*NOA 1094k (S)opedy Jejndied Yyons Moy SI3SIAPe JUBAD|DI

J2U30 10 / pue Buiunodde ‘xey |euoissajold INOA Y3im SSnISIp 0S|e pinoys noA ‘ape.y Aue bupjepspun

0} J0lid "UlaI9Y paqIOSap suopoesuel) ay3 Jo suopedljdwi ||e uo dSIApe Jou SSop pajiwi] uolbuipay
0uabl|ip

anp Jayuny 03 309[gns pue Aleujwipid se pajeas) 99 pjNoOYS SUOIDRSURL} PIINJSXD JO SWLISY 33 0}
20UdI94R4 Auy "S1S0D AISAIIDP pue Xe) JO SAISN[IXD SI pajonb 2o1d B3 “JueAdjRl I9YM "Ioesuel) 03 JoHo

3N* 02 uojbuipal@uepLiays-aleyd
608 £9v€ 0C (0)bb+ :IBL 9€T/ 92€ £0C (0)bb+ iIBL

1sAjeuy 9jeossy

PA0J|I9M U9ji3

uepuays aley)

J

3N*02°uo3buipal@uingyde|q-uiwelusq
908 £9+€ 02 (0) bv+ :IPL

JUBPISAI DIA J0IUDS

uingpe|g uiweluag

pung uoisuad spue|plA 1S\ A ZOF@Z_Dmm

ue jou si pue abueyd 03 3a[qns si ‘Ajuo aARedIpul S| bessaw siyy ul uoiew.ojul bupld Aue ‘pajels
SIMIDYIO SSI|UN “J|eyaq InoA uo spnpoad Juswisaaul 1o ‘suondo ‘sauniny ‘saniindas Aue [j9s 10 Anq

0] 4940 ue S2INJISU0D ulRIBY passaldxa suoluldo 10 SuoiepusWWOodd] ‘uoijew.oul ay3 JOyysN ‘saoud
10 S9)eJ 20U IO J0 ‘SRl ISaIaIUl ‘sajel Dbueydxd 24NNy JO DANRIIPUL AjIIESSIDBU J0U Dl dA0ge
Jeadde yoiym sao1d 10 Sa3el 9oUDID. D30 0 S3el ISl ‘sajel abueyoxa |edloisly Auy "93ep jeyl
Jaye sjuswdoAsp Juanbasgns Jo JUNOJJe ou oy} pue uoniedlgnd Jo S3ep 2y je pajwi] uolbuipay
0} 9|qe|ieAe uopewW.IouUl/ejep UO paseq S| JUSWNJOop SIY) *Saped) |enjoe yum pajed)dnp aq ued

sisAjeue siy3 ul pasn suondwnsse pue siejaweled a3 jey3 AJulead ou S| 49y *Soleuds sso| 3|qissod
||e 309)42. J0U S0P SISAjeue siy} pue ‘sisAjeue siyj 1094e Aew suondwnsse pue s103oej 19xlew Jo AjRLIeA
v *Ajuo sasodund uoISSnISIp 104 S| pue uolewlojul 93eAlid INOA 10J S| UIDJ9Y paulejuod uoljew.oul ayl
*UI2J9Y PaUIRIUOD UO[RWIO I

33 10 JUDWINJ0P SIY} UO dduelR4 10 Jo asn Aue wouy buisiie sso| |eluanbasuod 10 0a.ipul “paa1p Aue
10} JoA30S3eYM Ajljigel) Aue sydanoe ‘uosiad Jayio Aue dou ‘paywi] uojbulpay JoylsN ‘JUSWNJ0p SIY3
buipsebas payiwi uolbuipay Aq spew S| ‘(uonewloyul ay3 Jo ssauajerdoidde 1o Aduaidiyns ‘Ajjigeans
9Y3 03 Se 10 ‘uoijew.ojul 1o Syoej Aue Jo UOISSIWO 10 uoIsnpul Y3 ‘ssauals|dwod 10 Adeindde 3y} 0}

se ‘uoneywn| 3noyum ‘buipnpur) ‘Alojniess Jo paydwi ‘ssaadxe ‘ooueinsse Joylo 1o asjuelenb ‘Ajueliem
‘uonejuasasdal ou ‘AjbuIpi0ddy *S221N0S SNOLIBA WOL) PaUIR}JO SEM UIRJY paulejuod uoljewioul ayl

Jpwiepsiq

3N°02 uojbulpai@aidsa(ib-e.e)
€546 €T 80C (0)p+ :1PL

3N*02°U0}BUIPRIB ZOIMIINUSIMDIP-23 8D
8c1/ 92€ 0T (0)bb+ HIST)

S39SSY [2qO|D JO pESH

492110 JUSW)}SsoAUl ..—Q_F_mv
J

ZOIM3ADjuURIMBI(Q 932d

aidsa||io elel

SLOVLNOD



Agenda Item No: 13

Document is Restricted

Page 109



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item No: 14

Document is Restricted

Page 115



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item No: 15

Document is Restricted

Page 127



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 135



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	5 Responsible Investment Activities
	Appendix B – 2022 Responsible Investment Framework
	Appendix C – WMPF Engagement Activity
	Appendix D – WMPF Voting Activity

	6 Pensions Administration Report from 1 July to 30 September 2022
	Appendix A - Workflow Summary
	Appendix B - Detailed Process Analysis
	Appendix C - Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)
	Appendix D - Customer Service Statistics
	Appendix E - Admitted Body Applications

	7 Customer Engagement Update
	Appendix A - Summary feedback from member presentations and individual consultations

	8 Compliance and Assurance
	Appendix A - Risk Register
	Appendix B - Key Performance Indicators

	9 Delivering Our Corporate Plan
	10 Budget Monitoring 2022/23 and Quarterly Accounts to 30 September 2022
	11 Quarterly Investment Report to 30 September 2022
	Appendix A – Redington Economic and Market Update

	13 Investment Strategy and Activity Update
	14 2022 Actuarial Valuation Update
	15 Pension Administration System Transition
	Appendix A - High Level Plan




